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Profile

/i

The Hong Kong Trade Development Council (HKTDC) was established
in 1966. It is a statutory body dedicated to promoting Hong Kong's
trade in goods and services.

Our mission is to explore potential markets for Hong Kong companies,
especially small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs), and connect
them with business partners all around the world. With the help of

our global network of 50 offices, including 13 in Mainland China, we
create opportunities and promote Hong Kong as a platform for doing
business with the mainland and throughout Asia.
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Council
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The HKTDC governing body is a 19-member
Council of leaders from trade, industry, commerce
and government in Hong Kong. It sets the
corporate strategies and approves the operating
plans proposed by the management team.
HKTDC Executive Director Margaret Fong reports
to the Council, which plans and supervises the
HKTDC's global operations and services.

The Chairman and six members are appointed
by the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (HKSAR). Eight
are ex-officio appointments by virtue of their
chairmanships of chambers of commerce and
business associations or government positions,
while four are nominated members from the
chambers.
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Chairman
Dr Peter KN Lam, GBS

Ex-Officio Members

Mr Rex Chang, JP
Director of Information Services
HKSAR Government

Dr Jonathan Choi, GBS, BBS, JP
Chairman

The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce

Mr Gao Yingxin, JP
Chairperson

The Hong Kong Association of Banks

Dr Aron Harilela, 8BS, uP
Chairman

The Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce

Dr Dennis Ng, B8S, MH
President

The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong

Dr YK Pang, GBs, JP

Chairman
The Hong Kong Tourism Board

The Hon Edward Yau, GBS, Jp
Secretary for Commerce and Economic Development

HKSAR Government

Dr Daniel Yip

Chairman
The Federation of Hong Kong Industries

xE
MEEEL 2LHEs

B

AME

BRIRTE X TFML

BB TR E BT
BT R R A £

HEREL SEHEE  HEHES A THL
BRTERHE
gk

SRS E K FHL
EBIRITAE
FRE

BT XHES XTHL
B

EE

REMIEL ASEHES  HEpE
BEBTERBHEE

gR

TRERT SLHES  XTHL

BB R

FE

MRREEER Y SLHES - X Tt
BB THEEBIRT

BB RS EERBBR

BEhEEL

EEBIHES

FE

Nominated Members

Dr Sunny Chai, 88s

Managing Director

Fook Tin Group Holdings Limited

Ms Shirley Chan, B8s, Jp

Vice Chairman
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Mr Peter Wong, JP
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive
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Strong support through a challenging year

The 2019/20 financial year covers one of the most challenging periods which
Hong Kong's businesses have ever faced. In addition to seeing exports
undermined by the ongoing trade conflict between the United States and
Mainland China, Hong Kong's small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs)
faced challenges in the domestic market followed by the dramatic global
economic and societal impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Amid an extremely difficult trading environment, the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council (HKTDC) rallied to support SMEs, offering creative
solutions to help them diversify their businesses and open up new markets.
At the same time, we continued to promote Hong Kong as a leading hub
for investment and trade, highlighting the city's inherent strengths as a
two-way business platform and connector for the Belt and Road Initiative
and Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.
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Fast

Facts
HFEHE

EXHIBITORS
2RE

31,000+

The HKTDC connects Hong Kong businesses with potential partners from
around the world through a range of events and activities for both product
and services sectors. These include some of the largest exhibitions and
conferences in Asia and the world, while the HKTDC also reaches out to
overseas business communities through large-scale promotions.
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business connections

30,000+

business matching meetings
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+46%  +48%

growth in visits to growth in HKTDC Conference

% Belt and Road Portal App downloads
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The third edition of Designinspire showcased outstanding designs
and creative solutions from Hong Kong and around the world to
both trade and public visitors

FEZE TRIRREE) ABBRAZATETKRETERIER
MM HBRFHAENATES

Fourteen previous Young Fashion Designers' Contest (YDC)
designer brands were invited to return to the YDC stage to present
a special MINI x YDC fashion show at CENTRESTAGE

[E BRI HER) BEELAEREYDCERETAD » B F4TEMINI
x YDCEFEE52E o

The Smart Government Pavilion, presented by the Office of the

Government Chief Information Officer (OGCIO) of the HKSAR

Government, showcased a series of government-driven innovation

and technology initiatives at the International ICT Expo

BEBAFERNEMRRBENAZTE HREARKXIEE) &
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Chairman Dr Peter KN Lam (left) led a business delegation to
Thailand in July 2019 and paid a visit to Deputy Prime Minister

of Thailand Dr Somkid Jatusripitak (right) to explore cooperation
opportunities in trade, manufacturing, investment and services
EREERTEMESIEL(A)E2019578 » XEFMERKED
EZ&RE > EFHREREIBESEL(G) B SBNRREHE
B AE RERRFHFENSIERS -

Dr Janet L Yellen, Chair, Board of Governors, Federal Reserve
System (2014-2018) shared her perspectives on the independence
of central banks and the implementation of monetary policy, and
also offered her views on the global economy and the impact of
the Sino-US trade conflict at the 13th Asian Financial Forum
EEHFREHEER EFE(2014-2018) iR GE LEE 13/E EENERtH
B Lo pEHPRRBITEIUENEEBREHN R » Tk

R R - PEEZTHEAPTEE -

Two Hong Kong Pavilions were set up at the second China
International Import Expo, Shanghai in November 2019, helping
Hong Kong companies reach out to mainland buyers, distributors
and potential business partners

EREBERN2019F1IIATE LBRTNE_E THEHEREDE
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“Think Asia, Think Hong Kong” was held in September 2019 in Los
Angeles, attracting more than 1,500 participants eager to learn
about entering the Asian marketplace from or through Hong Kong
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The HKTDC led a business mission to Djibouti City, Nairobi and
Mombasa in August 2019 to explore the manufacturing and
investment opportunities in East Africa. Delegates exchanged
views with Richard Ngatia (front row, third from left), President

of the Kenya National Chamber of Commerce & Industry, at a
networking luncheon
EBBEBN2019F3EXERERRASNBRIELE > BFESH
B REERRERE RREERKRERS - AXKENEHSH
T kg EFERichard Ngatia (RIHFL =) EF B G ©

Start-up Express is a development programme launched by the
HKTDC in 2018 to help local start-ups build connections, explore
markets, seek partners and enhance brand awareness. Pictured are
the 2019 winners, judges and HKTDC Assistant Executive Director
Stephen Liang (third from left, front row)
BBBEBT2018FIEM TRIZERE ) - HEIAZEILAMR
HETS SEBHREARBAZE - BA2019F5EEET
AREEEEBIBBHREE AIHL=Z)AR -

The 11th edition of Entrepreneur Day was held in May 2019 with

the theme of “The Start-up Living Lab” which advocated solving
everyday “pain points” with innovative business ideas

F11E TRI%H) 2019658817 > M Tal A58 »E o AE
BIXEERAMBHRAREL ERMIEECAEE -

With COVID-19 lockdowns around the world severely limiting travel
and face-to-face business, the HKTDC launched the month-long
Spring Virtual Expo to help global buyers source new products from
more than 22,000 suppliers

MATRRESRBERIRANT » BEERTETREEEY > &
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The HKTDC's new “T-box” (Transformation Sandbox) programme
provides advisory services, workshops, networking opportunities
and market intelligence to help SMEs upgrade and transform in the
areas of branding, e-commerce, new markets and manufacturing
relocation

ERBEREEDT T-boxFAREIE » AR NERMEE
BREBRSE - T - IR ERTHEN > BMATEREE
B BEFHE - BENTSRERLEERMINS EmAREE -
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From
the

Chairman
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Dr Peter KN Lam,
GBS
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2019/20 was an extremely
challenging time for Hong Kong
and the world. Beginning with
an uncertain global economic
outlook and the Sino-US trade
conflict, and concluding with the
world combatting the pandemic
caused by the coronavirus and
trying to manage the economic
aftershocks. In Hong Kong, these
issues have been compounded
by social unrest which deeply
affected our city's social fabric
and international reputation.
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Confronted with challenges of such

intensity and scale, we doubled down

on our efforts to help Hong Kong's

business community ride through these
storms, especially small and medium-

sized enterprises (SMEs) which have
borne the brunt of these problems.

HHMICRE PR HFIMEE - BB EEIH

SRR EEENR/NEIRIBEERR-

Overcoming adversity

During the social unrest in the latter half of 2019, we spared no effort
in ensuring that our fairs and conferences were safe and business
could continue to be conducted. While many major events were
cancelled during that time, | am proud to say that against the

odds, we completed all of our major fairs, conferences and overseas
promotions as scheduled between July 2019 and January 2020,
drawing over 370,000 international and local businesspeople to our
events and helping them generate business.

When the coronavirus became a global public health concern at the
end of January, we faced the dilemma of balancing health and safety
priorities at our fairs and conferences with the need to help Hong Kong
companies capture every business opportunity possible. In the end we
had to make the difficult decision to reschedule some of our flagship
events from the spring to the summer.

To help SMEs during this critical period, we developed new virtual
and online-to-offline (020) platforms to help companies in Hong
Kong continue doing business around the world in the critical spring
sourcing season. This was especially crucial when the coronavirus

mEm L
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HKTDC Chairman Dr Peter K N Lam speaking at the fourth Belt and Road Summit
EREUREIFEMEERLEFNE (- SERERE -

began to affect not only Mainland China and Hong Kong, but also
the world. At the same time, we helped SMEs build their capacity by
launching a guided programme that goes beyond training to also
cover business development and practical trials. Along with the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR) Government's expanded
funding support, these measures will enable more Hong Kong
companies to get through these trying times.

Throughout the ups and downs of the year, we remained focused on
reaching out to our global partners to make inroads into mature and
emerging markets in any way we could. Mainland China remained
a staunch partner that supported our fairs and conferences and
worked closely with us to prepare for future opportunities arising
from the Belt and Road Initiative and the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area. One of the areas we keenly explored was
the rapid development of industrial parks in key Belt and Road
countries, and many of our overseas missions focused on introducing
SMEs to the manufacturing partnership opportunities now opening
up in these facilities.

-8-5|
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Not forgetting our city's start-ups, which also faced challenges, we
collaborated with members of the “Hong Kong family” to help start-
ups go global. | was greatly encouraged to see Hong Kong's start-up
community actively pursuing opportunities in the United States when
we brought them on a mission to Silicon Valley in September 2019. A
number of our local start-ups also made a big impression at CES, the
huge consumer electronics event held in Las Vegas in January 2020,
while the InnoVenture Salon at the Asian Financial Forum later the
same month in Hong Kong highlighted the creative solutions of the
city's start-ups in fields such as fintech and biotech.

With every crisis comes opportunity

| took up the chairmanship of the HKTDC knowing there would be
challenges in helping Hong Kong businesses navigate the trade
conflict. However, | had not anticipated the challenges would be on
the scale and intensity that we have seen over the past financial year.

But | believe that crisis brings change, and change brings opportunity.
At the HKTDC, we stand ready to help Hong Kong companies uncover
and capture these opportunities. As we head into a still uncertain
year ahead, much work needs to be done. | am optimistic that
together, we can ride through the storm and emerge stronger and
more resilient.

01 HKTDC Chairman Dr Peter KN Lam (front row,
fifth from left) and Dhanin Chearavanont, Senior
Chairman of CP Group (front row, sixth from right),
during a HKTDC mission to Bangkok. Mission
delegates from Hong Kong learnt about CP Group's
urban development and high-speed railway projects
in Thailand's Eastern Economic Corridor
ERREREIFMEEH L (AIHLR) XAHEARES
BER IFSEALESKREIEHNEARGFHAEN) > T
BZATNEREARPLEEBNRETCRBERSHER -

02  (From left) HKTDC Executive Director Margaret Fong;
HKSAR Permanent Secretary for Commerce and
Economic Development (Commerce, Industry and

Tourism) Eliza Lee; HKSAR Chief Executive Carrie Lam;

Liaison Office of the Central People’'s Government in
the HKSAR Deputy Director Qiu Hong; and HKTDC
Chairman Dr Peter KN Lam at the second China
International Import Expo in Shanghai

(EiE) EREBRRBUERRX ERREEBREERRE
REANER(IBRKRE) NS - FERFRITHRREM
W~ PREBHEANAZIETANBREBEERE
FEMEEEL  HENLERITNE R THMEERED

195 -

04 HKTDC Chairman Dr Peter K N Lam addressing the
“Think Asia, Think Hong Kong" symposium held in
Los Angeles, where he highlighted opportunities for
greater collaboration between the US and Hong Kong
EREEREIFMEEHINEEBLHBTHN TBaD
N EEEE LR PEEXEAREBLEERIERE
KESIERE o
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BOANTE;2020F1 AR EEARHEMET 1T
B CHEEFE | (Consumer Electronics Show)
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03 HKTDC Chairman Dr Peter KN Lam (centre) and
Executive Director Margaret Fong (left) mingling with
overseas directors
ERBRREIEMEER (P RERFERX(K)HZBE
IMREREARSKER -

05  (From left) HKTDC Chairman Dr Peter KN Lam;
HKSAR Financial Secretary Paul Chan; Economic
Secretary to the Treasury in the UK John Glen MP;
and HKTDC Executive Director Margaret Fong at the
Hong Kong Dinner in London
(i) ERBRBEIFEMEEHL - EBFEMBERDRK
R REMBEBKERHEUEEEFHS John Glen Rk EE
BRBERHARXUEN AR RABITHN (FEBRE) -
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In 2019/20, we were confronted
by unprecedented internal

and external challenges -
beginning our financial year
with the ongoing Sino-US trade
conflict and declining global
economy, we had to tackle the
effects of the social unrest in
Hong Kong, followed by the
coronavirus pandemic whose
impact is still being felt as we
close out the year.
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In the face of great adversity, we spared no effort

in finding solutions that could help local small and
medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) ride out the storm,
and to articulate to the world that Hong Kong
remained a premier global business hub. By being
more agile, persistent and creative, we enhanced

our organisation’s capabilities and developed new
and innovative ways to help Hong Kong’s businesses
overcome short-term and long-term challenges.

HHPR  RMAFER NI RER  HEA P/ NEEEE 1R
TRZHFRPAERESEKEE— B ERANABTE - RER
ERE-BRMAOANBSERE EREZURBRRATHEE I
Werih BRIG5> 1B B R B B R R R HhE -

Facing challenges head-on

It would not be an exaggeration to say that 2019/20 was the most
difficult period the HKTDC has faced since its establishment in 1966.
Hong Kong has been through challenging periods before, but nothing
on the scale of what we saw during this year, with both external and
internal strife shaking the foundations of the city's businesses.

As the impact of the succession of challenges was strongly felt by
Hong Kong and its industries, we had to rethink our strategies and
find new ways to help SMEs navigate the stormy waters.

Meeting the challenge of the trade conflict

As we began the 2019/20 financial year, the impact of the Sino-
US trade conflict, coupled with a softening global economy, was
significant. Hong Kong's exports fell continuously for two quarters.

We stepped up our efforts to help SMEs explore new markets and
diversify by looking at opportunities in the Association of Southeast
Asian Nations (ASEAN), Mainland China and further afield to other
countries along the Belt and Road. We also proactively pursued
opportunities in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
for Hong Kong companies. At the same time, we explored alternative
locations for manufacturing investment and supply chain solutions.

These efforts were underpinned by our capacity-building support

for SMEs with up-to-date market intelligence and regulatory
developments as well as workshops and market advice.

24
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HKTDC Executive Director Margaret Fong speaking at the Asian Financial Forum
EREERMHHRXE MENERmE] RE -

Continuing business during the social unrest

The fragile momentum for economic recovery was disrupted by the
social unrest that began in Hong Kong in June and continued to
the end of 2019. With images of the unrest being seen around the
world, many overseas businesspeople reconsidered visiting the city or
worried that our trade events would be unable to proceed. However,
we recognised that in these circumstances, Hong Kong companies
needed more than ever to continue doing business. We therefore
made a conscious decision to continue with our full roster of 31 fairs
and conferences and three overseas promotions as scheduled from
July 2019 to January 2020, despite the cancellation of many other
international events.

We were faced with myriad difficulties in addressing the prevalent
concerns of safety and business prospects among the international
business community and our partners. Nonetheless, we persisted
even when the odds continued to stack up against us. Leaving no
stone unturned, we implemented comprehensive logistical measures
to ensure the safety of participants, extensive business matching
and marketing to enhance the business potential of the events, and
widespread communications and outreach to promote them.

| am happy to report that, against all odds, we held all our events
during this period successfully and smoothly, drawing some 370,000
businesspeople from over 170 countries and regions. Additionally,
there were close to 1.5 million public visitors to our fairs, including the
HKTDC Hong Kong Book Fair, HKTDC Food Expo and Designinspire,
while three flagship conferences (the Belt and Road Summit, Asian
Financial Forum and Asian E-tailing Summit) attracted even more
participants than the previous year. Such figures highlight the value
these events brought to Hong Kong and its businesses, especially
during a difficult time for the city.
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Mitigating the impact of the virus

From late January, the coronavirus situation had worsened by
intensifying in Hong Kong and spreading globally to become a
pandemic. Faced with this additional blow, our city's businesses
needed to capture every opportunity possible to overcome these
successive challenges.

With safety as our priority, we had to move quickly and decisively in
the face of the fluctuating global situation caused by the COVID-19
pandemic. Our eventual decision to reschedule the 18 major trade
fairs, conferences and overseas events planned from February to May
to the second half of 2020 was a difficult but necessary one.

But despite these setbacks, we quickly prepared to support SMEs
during the first quarter of 2020 by developing innovative online-to-
offline (O20) and digital platforms for them to use during the global
sourcing and business season. As the outbreak continued, we also
launched a dedicated webpage focusing on medical and healthcare
supplies manufactured by enterprises in the region.

We also worked closely with the HKSAR Government to promote

their expanded funding schemes for SMEs to sustain their business
with new opportunities and capacity-building tools. Furthermore, we
piloted a guided support programme called “T-box" (“Transformation
Sandbox") in late 2019 to help Hong Kong SMEs achieve their business
transformation including e-commerce, branding, access to new
markets or manufacturing investment and supply chain solutions.

Each company receives three months of workshops, advisory sessions,

business development opportunities or a chance for a practical
trial. We have already helped manufacturers find help on relocation,
technology companies protect their intellectual property (IP) and
find partners, and exporters access new markets. In the midst of the
coronavirus outbreak, T-box was moved online so that SMEs could
continue to benefit from the resources available.

Spring Virtual Expo

B e b g
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The month-long Spring Virtual Expo drew 1.4 million
online buyers from around the world to visit and source,
helping suppliers secure new contacts and orders
AA—EAK TEHMRME FFMERMBE > R5I2K1408
MEBRARBERE > MBS HEEFETERRTE o

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &2 B 5 % B /5 & # 2019/20

Using technology to reach out,

communicate and do business

One major impact that the challenges of the past financial year had
on Hong Kong and the world was the accelerated adoption of cutting-
edge technology in every aspect of our lives; whether it is in medical
technology in testing and treating COVID-19 patients, the use of
artificial intelligence and smart city technologies in managing cities
and public health systems, or in fintech and education tech services
to maintain public life, or even in implementing the Internet of Things
and 5G in online public services.

With a strong emphasis on technology in the past three years, our
activities will step up the infusion of technology and innovation in
the coming financial year. During the social unrest and coronavirus
pandemic, we stepped up our digital offerings to enable business
between our buyers and sellers, our investors and our partners.

The fast-changing landscape also called for a more agile mode of
operations based on an enhanced digital workplace infrastructure
which we readily embraced.

FRENCH TECH FOR GOOD

S eRSojve

25 g Al - ' - e =,

right) at the “So French So Innovative” Pavilion at the International ICT Expo

HKSAR Chief Executive Carrie Lam (centre) and HKTDC Executive Director Margaret Fong (second
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Moving forward - recovery and revitalisation

Hong Kong is a city that has been through difficult times before but
always emerged stronger. As we look forward to embarking on the
road to recovery in the coming months, we will keep our focus on
being an effective enabler and facilitator for businesses around the
world, and a nurturing ground for our city’'s SMEs and start-ups.

Despite the enormous difficulties Hong Kong and global businesses
have been facing, | believe the HKTDC will be able to play a role in
contributing to their recovery.

Team effort

In closing, | would like to thank our HKTDC staff, who have achieved
the almost impossible to maintain service levels during an extremely
difficult year, and our partners for being so generous with their time,
expertise and support for our work.

01  Toasting at the opening reception of CENTRESTAGE
are (from left) HKTDC Council Member Shirley Chan;
New York designer Joseph Altuzarra; Chairman of
HKTDC Garment Advisory Committee Lawrence

Leung; HKSAR Financial Secretary Paul Chan; HKTDC

Executive Director Margaret Fong; Hong Kong
designer Anais Mak; Legislator Felix Chung; and
HKTDC Council Member Edith Law

(i) ERERREETHMEMRMNIL - MOFERM
JosephAltuzarra ~ EEERERKREZANZERTEIRR
RE ARBEMBAIRMXKE EEEEREHS
BX BRRANESS UZEREEEAR > UKE

BEHEREFEMERITM > 1 HEERRHER) MR

BHELERE -

02 HKTDC Executive Director Margaret Fong (second
from right) with entrepreneurs at the launch event

for the HK Startup Society, the HKTDC's first start-

up online platform

ERBERBHAA RN (EI) RV CERZREEA

#8 £ #t B¥ HK Startup Society B @138 &8 o

04 HKSAR Financial Secretary Paul Chan (centre) at
the Hong Kong International Wine and Spirits Fair
with HKTDC Chairman Dr Peter K N Lam (third
from left) and HKTDC Executive Director Margaret
Fong (second from left)
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03  From left: Former California State Treasurer John
Chiang, HKTDC Chairman Dr Peter KN Lam,
California State Treasurer Fiona Ma, HKSAR Secretary
for Commerce and Economic Development Edward
Yau and HKTDC Executive Director Margaret Fong at
"Think Asia, Think Hong Kong" in Los Angeles
(E#e) AN BB R4S - SREBRBEREMES -
MHEEBREEE - EBREFBREELERBB/ R
WERTEEUBBAF OB RETH TEREMN
HEEB AR

05 Vice Governor of Guangdong Province Zhang Hu
(fourth from left) and HKTDC Executive Director
Margaret Fong (fourth from right) officiating at the
Hong Kong Night of Chic HK in Guangzhou
ERERERER(ENEKEREEREHSRX(AD)
REMNBENE . BR RESLIRTEB2RH
B
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A soft global economy coupled with the
ongoing trade conflict between the United
States and Mainland China had a significant
impact on Hong Kong manufacturers. As
exports fell in 2019 and confidence in the
prospects for 2020 waned, the HKTDC
instigated a raft of measures to support local
small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs)
and help them create new opportunities
beyond traditional markets.

ERERKZ MEPEXBEZEREGE  GREARE
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The California State Trade Expansion Program (California STEP)
brought 12 food companies from the United States to exhibit at the
Food Expo, marking a stronger presence than in previous years. The
exhibitors showcased a variety of speciality foods and beverages such
as avocado oils, wines, nuts and chocolate and met with a positive
response. California STEP's director Jeffrey Williamson said its exhibitors
connected with many buyers from Hong Kong and Mainland China and
felt positive about the new business opportunities they were able to
explore. He said that Hong Kong, with its excellent financial, legal and
logistics infrastructure, is the “lead market” for California’s exporters to
enter Asia.

EEMMNE ZHEETE(STEP)REEMIEERATNLSHE R EE) > B
THRE - BEE  RCNMRZNEER > HEREEXR > FESFEERDESE -
H 4885 Jeffrey Williamson R » BRI R 3K B EHE K B At A B 52 37 Bk
L REZERWRNEKE MEGEETENEMER  AFIURYAEE -
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Artop Group describes itself as the largest industrial design house in
Mainland China with operations in Hong Kong and many cities in Europe.
Ansel Cheng, Design Director at Artop Group (HK), used his visit to
Designinspire to find new materials for the firm's latest innovations and
designs. He said that through his first-time participation in the HKTDC's
business-matching service he was lined up with two prospective material
suppliers from Japan, highlighting the effectiveness of the service in
bringing exhibitors and buyers together.
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HKSAR Chief Executive Carrie Lam (centre), the then Chief Executive of the Macao Special Administrative Region,
Chui Sai-on (left); and the Chairman of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, Dr Peter KN Lam (right) at
the opening ceremony of the second China International Import Expo and the Honggiao International Economic

Forum in Shanghai

@

F_RTPEEFEOENSEUNREGES NI RIEABS

THE SECOND CHINA INTERNATIOHAL IMFORT EXPCARD THE HOMGOIAD INTERMATIONAL ECOMOSIC FORLAM OFMMG CEREMONT

Photo: HKSAR Government
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As we moved further into 2019, the stark reality facing Hong Kong's
exporters began to hit home. The HKTDC Export Index repeatedly
dropped to record lows, in the fourth quarter of 2019 and the first
quarter of 2020, while our survey found that 65% of local exporters
anticipated a drop in their total sales for the year.

A new challenge also emerged in the first quarter of 2020 as the
COVID-19 outbreak spread around the world and the potential impact
on the global economy - and Hong Kong's exporters — became clearer.

Against this backdrop, the HKTDC introduced a series of initiatives
to help local SMEs across various platforms. Our key goal was to help
businesses overcome the challenges resulting from the trade conflict
and ensure they could remain competitive in a tough and constantly
changing global environment. We did this in different ways, from
promoting business diversification and developing new markets to
continuing to promote Hong Kong's strengths as a trading hub.
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Promoting diversification

Rising protectionism increased the need for businesses to diversify
and find alternative markets. The HKTDC took a multi-pronged
approach to help SMEs.

Our main focus was on highlighting opportunities in the Association of
Southeast Asian Nations (ASEAN) bloc, and to this end we organised
two investment missions - to Thailand and Indonesia - to help Hong
Kong companies identify alternative manufacturing partnership and
investment opportunities in the face of the Sino-US trade conflict

and rising production costs in Mainland China. We also held a series

of seminars focused on Myanmar and Indonesia, providing practical
information to help Hong Kong manufacturers diversifying or
expanding their production bases beyond the mainland.

Looking beyond ASEAN, in August we organised a mission that
successfully explored manufacturing and investment opportunities in
East Africa, focusing on Djibouti and Kenya, followed in September by
a mission to Kazakhstan.

We also helped local companies make inroads into the huge Mainland
China market by ensuring a Hong Kong presence at the China
International Import Expo held in Shanghai in November 2019. This
was our second time at the event and more than 40 companies
exhibited at our two Hong Kong Pavilions.

Additionally, we continued to take Hong Kong brands to major trade
events overseas and introduced a new “Show and Match” promotional
model. Combining showcase and business matching services, this
new format provides SMEs with a more cost-effective way to reach
new customers in mature markets. In 2019/20, the “Show and Match”
format took Hong Kong brands to Germany, Indonesia, Japan, the
Philippines and the UK.

The HKTDC led a mission to Almaty and Shymkent in September 2019 to
explore new opportunities in Kazakhstan and nearby Central Asia markets. An
MoU was signed to strengthen cooperation between the two economies
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A mission to Indonesia was organised to explore
manufacturing investment opportunities for the electronics
industry
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Enhanced effort at Hong Kong trade fairs

In the latter half of 2019, as international media attention focused on
social discord in Hong Kong, many organisations cancelled events.
The HKTDC took the opposite approach.

We ran all our exhibitions and conferences as scheduled to underline
that it was still “business as usual” in Hong Kong and reinforce our
commitment to helping SMEs develop their businesses. The impact of
these fairs was boosted further by initiatives such as enhanced buying
missions and upgraded business matching services.

Fair focus

From July 2019 to January 2020 we staged 31 trade fairs, conferences
and events in Hong Kong. Seven of those fairs achieved a record-
breaking number of exhibitors, while three conferences saw a record
number of participants.

To ensure overseas business visitors continued to have a smooth
event experience, we implemented a series of special logistical and
safety measures at all events.

The HKTDC Creative Department won nine silver and one bronze awards in the A' Design Award

& Competition in Italy and Creativity International Awards in the US for various fair designs

EEEERAERERZERER > MFEAKFIA Design Award & Competition K % E Creativity
International Awards & $£ 915 R #% R 1 16§ #% o
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From July 2019 to January 2020 in Hong Kong
2019 7HXE20205£1A

31 340,000

When the city was hit by the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020 we
had no option but to postpone several of our key events. However, all
our major events scheduled from February to May were rescheduled
to later in the year. This underscored both our confidence in Hong
Kong and our commitment to creating business opportunities for
local enterprises.

Safety
matters
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More buyers, better business matching
We initiated a raft of measures to boost the business prospects of
exhibitors and buyers attending our events.

One such initiative was to boost buyer recruitment for all fairs, by
doubling our efforts both locally and through our network of overseas
offices. For example, for the HKTDC Hong Kong Toys & Games Fair
we brought in 137 VIP buyers - compared to 70 in 2019 - and there
were 103 overseas buying missions versus 76 in the previous year. This
trend was consistent among our various fairs.

This concerted effort helped to turn around a difficult situation and
we saw a year-on-year increase of between 5% and 18% in business
matching meetings at our trade fairs between August 2019 and
January 2020.
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HARMT-RIERESHESE - RAZE
BERERSHEEGE[EHNENR -

Hph—E#ENERMBMAEREERNBING
ERMAE MESHBFELERRBZERE
ToBFN RS EBRAR FRIITRE
EEXK(2019FRFT70MI) > WA T 1031885
BXE (EERAT6E) HMEBEGBERESE -

ERZEAERSH BRASUHEERTE  £2019
F8AE2020F 1 BRERETHMETHNEE
B TR ERIMNS%ZE18% °

Initiatives to enhance buyer and exhibitor
connections included:
BMFEERERNSERE2RENEE > HhaiE :

Arranging Premier

Buyer Concierge Desks at

An online business

Buyer Meetings with events to channel more matching system for
big buyers buyers to exhibitor booths self-arranged meetings
AHEIZERZHEL ERBSHREEREH RIUFLEHERE R
BERXES IR G - SI1REZ B RA HoHEEBEERE
F2RENRE HrEE
01  The 30th Hong Kong Book Fair welcomed close to one 02 HKTDC organised two fashion parades at Lee Tung

03

05

million visitors during its seven-day run. Renowned
author Ni Kuang's seminar attracted a capacity
audience of more than 2,000 people
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The Hong Kong International Licensing Show 04
attracted a record attendance of more than 20,000
visitors

EBEREER] WIRLHENAMBEASH o

A model showcases a watch at one of the many 06

“watch parades” held throughout the Hong Kong

Watch & Clock Fair and the concurrent Salon de TE
EERREI R TERSREE) 2THB AFL1T25
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Avenue in Wan Chai as a prelude to CENTRESTAGE
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The inaugural Craft Beer Pavilion at the Hong Kong
International Wine & Spirits Fair showcased an
assortment of quality local craft brews. The products
were well-received by buyers

TEEBEREER) BR (FIWEE) > @RAMES
BEFIMAERE  RIRERRM -

Designinspire showcased outstanding designs
and creative solutions and highlighted Hong Kong
creativity to trade and public visitors
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37



RISING TO THE EXPORT CHALLENGE FE %}t [ $k &

FRRBITRERR

The Government of the Hong Kong

Special Administrative ™agion

e t_.
Y
KNGS z%

&

AFF

TME MR

ASUAN FINANCIAL FORUM

=M &
ASIAN FINANCIAL FORUM

AFF

FF

N

HoNG#

ARAE WORLDCITY DeEEEE

Prof Abhijit Banerjee, winner of the 2019 Nobel Prize in Economics and Ford Foundation International Professor of Economics at the Massachusetts
Institute of Technology, speaking at the keynote luncheon on the second day of the Asian Financial Forum
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Supporting Hong Kong's services

In the face of the volatile external business environment and growing
regional competition, the HKTDC continued to promote Hong Kong's
world-class services through flagship regional conferences, including
the Asian Financial Forum, Business of IP Asia Forum, Asian Logistics
and Maritime Conference and Asian Licensing Conference. Despite the
challenges of 2019/20, these conferences continued to attract:

- Record-breaking attendances
The four conferences drew almost 9,000 participants with the Asian
Financial Forum attracting a record-breaking attendance of 3,500.

- Global A-list speakers

Over 250 experts shared insights at the four conferences. Among

them were:

— DrJanet L Yellen, Chair, Board of Governors, Federal Reserve
System (2014-2018)

— Prof Abhijit Banerjee, winner of the 2019 Nobel Prize in
Economics and Ford Foundation International Professor of
Economics at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology

- World-renowned brands
Leading brands and organisations that shared insights at these
events included AS Roma, Google, Impossible Foods, MAERSK,
NVIDIA, National Geographic, the World Trade Organisation, the
World Intellectual Property Organization and more.

- Vibrant business activity
The conferences provided numerous opportunities for Hong
Kong service providers and experts to connect with international
investors and potential partners, including over 800 one-to-one
arranged business matching meetings.
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Keeping SMEs updated and informed

Fundamental to our approach in 2019/20 was the need to
communicate consistently and clearly, providing SMEs with timely
information that could help them make informed decisions to boost
their export prospects.

We published a broad range of materials aimed at keeping companies up

to date and informed on key issues such as the economic environment,
current trade challenges and opportunities in new markets.

The HKTDC's Research department provided a wealth of information

to help SMEs, including:

«  The quarterly Hong Kong Export Index along with on-site surveys
at key HKTDC trade fairs to gauge near-term export prospects.

Regular updates on regulatory developments in key international
markets and insights into major trade issues.

Seminars to update SMEs on the latest developments and to offer

response strategies.

Studies on the priority ASEAN markets with insights on consumer

characteristics and distribution channels in major product categories.

« Consumer studies covering key sectors in Mainland China.

A special section on the Research Portal providing information on

23 potential investment destinations in Southeast Asia, South Asia,

Central and Eastern Europe and Africa to help companies looking
to diversify or expand.

We also assisted Hong Kong manufacturers through the SME Corner
in the HKTDC Belt and Road Portal, which featured information on
economic zones and industrial parks along the Belt and Road as
potential alternative manufacturing bases.

Exporter Confidence Fell to Record Low

Members of the HKTDC Research department at the HKTDC Export Index press
conference, where they announced the index's lowest-recorded level and revealed
findings on Hong Kong exporter pessimism on the outlook for all industries, especially
jewellery. From left: HKTDC Economist Poon Cheuk-hong, HKTDC Economist Doris
Fung, HKTDC Director of Research Nicholas Kwan and HKTDC Assistant Principal
Economist (Asian and Emerging Markets) Wenda Ma

EREERMABEARNCEG LAGEBROBYHKENE  RMEFSZEEXRRITERD
AR CHEKEX EEASEBHERKEMERE - SEBHZERQEMBIE - BEE
BRRMEMRE > UREEBERDNAMENSHEERCHEMBRE -

AP hERERHER

2019/20F & RMANTHERZ—2EF /D
RETEHRAEE BBRERBER #5
I BB B HRE BRI

RARH—RIEN ECLPRAAEEHE
B ERE I REE SN ESNE 5
HISHIEE o

ERBERMERERHEEEMNZ N BB P /NDE
TREES 8iF:

c EXERESRBEBETHAERGHEBEDO
FRE BT ERNNORR -

s EHEMEAERTIEZEERTSEENENER
RN TEZEZHE -

c BERMASNE - BBPNEEESTNERSB
B MR R BRI o

s HEERRBEDHRETHR @ERNEIE
EmBRIHEERMKRDHERE

c HEAMETETENHEERR -

s ERBMREAEL ERIFRMEE  RH23
EIA R AEE ~ FIEE ~ BN RER R IEM BT &
ERBAMEN BHARNERAFR S TE
}%O

HMTEBEBEER —H—K) EAMEERN
B hhiRE EHREMI—F K 8% E
BERERIXEENEN K BHBERL
BREESEM-

The HKTDC's Research department provides a wealth of
information to help SMEs through its revamped website
EREERMRBAUBRLERER > #EARNEREEEN
EEEGE
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Hong Kong — business continues

In 2019/20, we put much effort into ensuring the world that Hong
Kong was still open for business. We disseminated “Hong Kong

- business continues” messages through video and social media
channels and made good use of our "Hong Kong ambassadors” such
as members of the Federation of Hong Kong Business Associations
Worldwide and our six bilateral committees.

With the support of members of the Federation of Hong Kong
Business Associations Worldwide, we organised the 20th edition of
the Hong Kong Forum in December 2019. Close to 300 Federation
members from all 35 countries and regions attended, receiving the
latest updates on the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government's initiatives and taking positive messages home to share
with their fellow business communities.

Similarly, work with the Hong Kong-Europe Business Council and

the Hong Kong-Taiwan Business Co-operation Committee helped

to promote economic ties and build high-level dialogues, and at the
same time reinforce the message that Hong Kong remains a safe and
vibrant international business hub.

Or ganisers

P
|
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Federation of Hong Kong
Business Associations Worldwide

HIKSAR Chief Executive Carrie Lam gives a keynote speech on the city's latest economic development to 300 global

business leaders at the Hong Kong Forum

EBRETHREMBEEE E5HE) BF > A300ZREHRASHNEREW > ARSBLEBERNERE -
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H( ' $‘ yeronafier®
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19 5ept 2019 = Milan, taly

CHAL " A r'ﬂi\'-NTU"'.lruﬁLNh

HKTDC Deputy Executive Director Benjamin Chau (left), and Veronafiere S.p.A. CEO
Giovanni Mantovani (right) signed a cooperation agreement to bring Italian wine
producers to exhibit at the HKTDC Hong Kong International Wine & Spirits Fair
EBEEFEMEH B MR (/) RVeronafiere{TEI 42 # Giovanni Mantovani () & & 1E 1% 3% » ZHF
BANEER2M EBERIER °

20,000

ASEAN buyers visited HKTDC fairs
RUEBER2BEEERBRYE

Business matching meetings arranged at HKTDC fairs
ERE L2 RN TR

Online market reports published
4Bk B RO B 35 X E

Buying missions joined our trade fairs
BREsHcEHgRESRE
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Two-way
Platform
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Throughout a difficult year for Hong Kong,
the HKTDC pushed forward on one of its
prime objectives - to promote the city on
the world stage, highlighting its advantages
as a global commercial centre and two-
way investment hub. We achieved this

by showcasing Hong Kong's traditional
strengths - as a centre for finance, trade,
logistics and professional services - and by
demonstrating its growing expertise in areas
such as the technology and creative sectors.

EEREBE—SEERF  HERBLURRNERHE
FTEER MURHEEETE > LRELFBELHIRIKE
BEROKRERKRERENRE - &It > HAFAKRTER
HEBEERM  B5 - MARAREZRBFAONERE
2 hWERAHNEREIEERZSFHBHIAM
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Success Story B I 1B % /01

Hong Kong's Kwan On Holdings, which is looking to diversify its
investments in the Philippines and expand its Belt and Road Initiative
plan, signed a memorandum of understanding (MoU) with the
Metropolitan Manila Development Authority, a Philippine government
agency, at the Belt and Road Summit. The MoU sets out an overall
framework for launching a light rail project with the objective of
optimising transportation in Metro Manila and promoting development
along the Pasig River.

ERCENZERBRATDE—F B SEREE REFERFKRETE
BRAABMEERER BESFHETSE FIERERENRENBEER  UkE
EERE THGEAN-—FTHNER - HEEEMAEFEENREL ST E
B URBRE—F—K nGBRMNET -



Success Story B I 1B % /02

Headquartered in Hong Kong, the world-leading Al company SenseTime
took part in a HKTDC mission to Korea in 2018, leading to discussion
with the country's largest IT service company LG CNS, also a subsidiary
of LG. In early 2020, the two companies announced a collaboration to
introduce a biometric recognition system for the access control for the
employees at the LG CNS's headquarter. The technology is 99% accurate
and can authenticate registered employees in 0.3 seconds. LG CNS plans
to extend the system to its customers around the world.

BEBBRREB - EXELTNATIEEARNH SRR R2018F2HEFEE
EREREAETRE HRABREKRANEARKRBERER LCGHNFAH
LGCNSHE I S 1E 2020 F ¥ MR EXEMREMRSENE > ALGCNSEHAEE
REEMHDENETRR - ZARRNEREE%  AIR0IVAREES
I53 LGCNSEHEIRZARERBRE MR BINES o
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The HKTDC's work to promote Hong Kong's advantages for
international trade became all the more important in 2019/20. But
while the domestic economy was hit hard by local and international
challenges, Hong Kong's fundamentals - its position as an
international finance, trade and logistics centre underpinned by
world-class professional services - remained intact.

Our goal at the HKTDC was to ensure that this message was relayed
across the world, at the same time emphasising the city’'s continuing
role as an effective commercial platform to access opportunities
arising from the Belt and Road Initiative and Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area Development Plan.

think

Photo: HKSAR Government Information Services Department
EF  EBEERTEE
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E2019/20FE - EBRERRIENERE
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BIEERTEBERKEE ) BETFMERN
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HKSAR Secretary for Commerce and Economic
Development Edward Yau, speaks at the "Think Asia,
Think Hong Kong" Symposium organised by the
HKTDC in Los Angeles, the United States
ERREEBREERRERRRERENTBERERER
EREHRBITHN TEREN BEEE) AEEREHLE
HEE o

A Hong Kong entrepreneur tries out virtual reality
technology during a company visit on a HKTDC-led
mission to San Diego, Orange County and Los Angeles
concurrent with "Think Asia, Think Hong Kong"

rEmIN HEEE) |1THE > SEEERXATBLERNA
EEARTRELET BEBRBLHE > LAFHZRAE - BAHHESR
—RAIEE KA TR ERBEIREH o
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Major overseas promotions

Our signature promotional event of the reporting year was “Think
Asia, Think Hong Kong” (TATHK), held in Los Angeles in September
2019. This campaign has run in different mature markets since 20711
and has proved highly effective in promoting Hong Kong.

The core message of TATHK is to promote Hong Kong as a two-way
platform between Asia and the world. California was chosen because
the state is the largest US exporter and importer of merchandise
goods to and from Hong Kong. The campaign, which attracted close
to 1,500 participants, focused on technology and start-ups and served
to showcase Hong Kong as a bridge between the Greater Bay Area
and the Silicon Beach start-up hub in Los Angeles.

The COVID-19 outbreak forced us to reschedule our other large-
scale promotion, “In Style « Hong Kong"”, planned for Manila, as we
continue our efforts to help Hong Kong's small and medium-sized
enterprises (SMEs) tap into Association of Southeast Asian Nations
(ASEAN) markets.

» A plenary session focused on Hong Kong's development as a
hub for entrepreneurship, innovation and technology.
FTEERSGEMRETBHEARE  AIFRRMPONER -

» US business leaders shared their experience in leveraging
Hong Kong's platform and international business network.
XEFHRAMOEFNBEENT O RERRE B HEKER -

» The InnoVenture Salon showcased Hong Kong's
entrepreneurial spirit and connected Hong Kong start-ups
with US investors and facilitators.

FnnoVenture & | BRREBRIZERFE® » WinBFHBIEIASFHE
FEKREEREBASRIHE -
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Building bridges with ASEAN

Trade ties between Hong Kong and countries in the ASEAN bloc have
grown stronger in recent years, spurred further by the Free Trade
Agreement and Investment Promotion and Protection Agreement
that have come into force gradually since June 2019. The HKTDC
continued its work to help Hong Kong SMEs tap into the potential

of this fast-growing market, at the same time allowing ASEAN
enterprises to explore opportunities through the Hong Kong platform.

In July, we organised a high-level business mission to Thailand, led by
our Chairman, to learn about the latest developments in the country
and explore business and investment opportunities in infrastructure
and industrial parks, with a focus on the Eastern Economic Corridor.
Hong Kong's advantages were highlighted through meetings

with government officials and representatives from leading Thai
enterprises.

Thailand was the focus again in November when the HKTDC joined
a delegation organised alongside the Hong Kong-Thailand High
Level Joint Conference, led by the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (HKSAR). Meetings explored deeper
cooperation between Hong Kong and Thailand in areas ranging from
trade and investment to capital market collaboration.

HKSAR Chief Executive Carrie Lam (third left) and the HKTDC Chairman Dr Peter K N Lam (fifth left)

Bukitr MBRNA

e EERRBARNESHRABER
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R o

EEBEERTIENHET AMEBSERR
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FEENBERREKE -ZREHEEMES R
MEBEECENRREEB NESEEZ -
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B-RESEHEER HRABNARE E
EBRETHRENGET BRI WMARLCER
MEEmMTES RERBEEATHEFRIEANS
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Photo: HKSAR Government

Information Services Department

meet the Deputy Prime Minister of Thailand, Dr Somkid Jatusripitak (third right), in Bangkok nation >
EERETHEEHEAR(ES) REEEERTRHEENL(AE)HEARFEEILENS (62) 0@ - WA BRBERMAMAE
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HKSAR Chief Executive Carrie Lam (left) and the Deputy Prime Minister of Thailand, Dr Somkid Jatusripitak (rlght)

signing an MoU on strengthening economic relations between Hong Kong and Thailand

ERRETRREMNBAM(L) RXERAQEES (6)ESRRETE  RETBRRENCERR -

Also in November, we co-organised, with the HKSAR Government,

a Hong Kong business and professional delegation to Malaysia

and Thailand led by the Secretary for Commerce and Economic
Development of the HKSAR. The delegation represented
accounting, finance, infrastructure, insurance, legal services, logistics,
manufacturing, major chambers, technology and start-ups. Visits to
and meetings with the Office of Malaysia-China Kuantan Industrial
Park and the Thai-Chinese Rayong Industrial Park were included.

Thailand and Indonesia were also destinations for missions in which
we promoted the Hong Kong watch industry and food and beverage
sector, while we helped Hong Kong companies explore manufacturing
investment and diversification opportunities on missions and in shows
in the Philippines, Indonesia, Vietnam, Malaysia and Thailand.

ASEAN continued to feature strongly at our events, such as at the
Asian E-tailing Summit, which included roundtable discussions
attended by heads of the region's e-tailing associations, while
there were over 500 delegates from the region at the Belt and Road
Summit.

Photo: HKSAR Government
Information Services Department
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Belt and Road and Greater Bay Area opportunities
The work we have been doing to promote Hong Kong as a two-way
platform has been underpinned by our commitment to two key
initiatives — the Belt and Road Initiative and the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area Development Plan.

To help Hong Kong companies capitalise on the many opportunities
we expect to emerge from the synergies between the Greater Bay Area
and the Belt and Road, the HKTDC set up a Belt and Road & Greater
Bay Area Committee in October 2019.

Also new in 2019 was the Infrastructure Tool Kit, launched under our
Belt and Road Portal, which provides a detailed workflow and useful
resources for each stage of the lifecycle of infrastructure projects.
More than 300 Hong Kong service providers are listed in the Tool Kit.

Promoting the Greater Bay Area at fairs

We stepped up promotion of the Greater Bay Area at our events.

For example, Eco Expo Asia 2019 featured a Greater Bay Area Zone
in which almost 100 exhibitors from all nine cities and two Special
Administrative Regions in the Greater Bay Area presented the latest
environmental technologies and a comprehensive range of green
products. The “Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area”
theme day was also organised as part of the Expo.

In addition, there were over 10 pavilions from the Greater Bay Area
region mounted at HKTDC fairs, including the Guangdong Pavilion at
the Hong Kong International Lighting Fair (Spring Edition), Hong Kong
Houseware Fair and Hong Kong Electronics Fair (Autumn Edition).

The Infrastructure Tool Kit was launched on the
Belt and Road Portal
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out strategies and deliver concrete
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Helps Hong Kong SMEs establish a
business presence in industrial parks along
the Belt and Road and the Greater Bay
Area, and helps manufacturers expand into
new markets.

HyaBRNEE —F—K RAEE
RESEEBRIXBERN LHHRE
BREHTS

Promotes the export of Hong Kong's
smart city solutions, builds Hong Kong

as a business hub for smart city-related
solutions and helps capitalise on the
booming technology development in the
Greater Bay Area.
MEAREEENERBTRRLE  BF
BITERMEE SRR BN
Bl THREANEEHNKREDERAME
REVHE IS ©

Supports the development of Hong

Kong's start-up ecosystem with a view to
building Hong Kong as a preferred start-

up destination in Asia and helping Hong
Kong start-ups expand into Belt and Road
countries and the Greater Bay Area.
SRERVACEERENER BIESHE
HERTEMNPRAEXERNEERR  1E
BAEBVACEBRERE —H—K1n
RERRKEE -

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &2 B 5 % E 5 &£ # 2019/20

Belt and Road Summit

Our commitment to the Belt and Road Initiative was underscored

by the fourth Belt and Road Summit, co-organised with the HKSAR
Government to spotlight Hong Kong's role as the commercial hub for
Belt and Road opportunities.

Held in September 2019, with a record attendance of more than 5000
delegates from 67 countries and regions, the Summit once again
brought together senior government officials and influential business
leaders from countries along and beyond the Belt and Road to
exchange insights and explore concrete business collaboration.

This year's summit highlighted opportunities available through the
Greater Bay Area Development Plan, and we organised inbound
missions from Greater Bay Area cities to connect with Hong Kong

companies and service providers through networking events and
business matching activities. A plenary session gave participants a
better understanding of the opportunities offered by the area and its
linkage with the Belt and Road Initiative.
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Over 90 internationally acclaimed business leaders were invited to speak at the Belt and Road Summit

BOOMIEIMRAEZ B RAMBBIEE T—H—B) SEREREE -

rie ass O

Lt 2018 1810

) +35%

25k
business matching
meetings arranged

LEERHEE

o
=

X

— projects featured ‘I’“

About it
missions from Mainland
China and overseas

B2k B P E A3t R g Sh B9
RRE

*
m renowned international
© © ) speabers

R ¥ B4 s £

49



TWO-WAY PLATFORM FORSUCCESS € mF & mIhz &

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &2 B 5 % E /5 & # 2019/20

Hong Kong's key role as a connector for the Belt and Road and ERAET—H—RIAKREENEMAENERA
Greater Bay Area requires ever-closer links with businesses and B BREHEANMCEREBREIEREMGE T
institutions in Mainland China. We did this in various ways in 2019/20, 2019/20FE BRMBEBEBHANITFE TN
including joint missions to overseas countries, various promotional BT RPNSHEIIREELRABERARBEN
campaigns in mainland cities to showcase Hong Kong's edge in BE URGHEBRERAAARNETS > UMA

products and services, and activities to help local brands tap into the AR R o
mainland consumer market.

50

In 2019/20 the HKTDC organised a series of activities to build stronger links

with businesses and institutions in Mainland China.

2019/20FE > EREREREM—RIEDY > BAMECERKBREIEREHE -

Promoted the international expertise of Hong Kong infrastructure
development and real estate-related services (IRES) providers,
connecting them with government officials, developers and project
owners in Chongging and helping to capture opportunities arising
from the urbanisation drive in this region of China.
EEAEEERZEREMEAMRBHEDEESNERCRKREEM
#oWHEMRBERERRNES - ¥RBEKREBES AR
5 > W HBHE P g it P ED AR SEE PR S SR AV I8 ©

Inaugural quadripartite collaboration with Mainland China's Ministry
of Commerce, the Commerce and Economic Development Bureau
of the HKSAR Government and the China International Contractors
Association. Connected representatives from 50 Hong Kong

and mainland enterprises to explore investment and partnership
opportunities in the three countries.

EERBRREBXBEHI FERERNABREEZERRPEE
SNEBIEFEERETHSEE > BMBSORABRAMBENK
o HAFASEEZEERNRERBHEFERE -

Jointly organised by the HKTDC and the Department of Commerce
of Guangdong province, this mission connected representatives from
30 Hong Kong and Guangdong enterprises to explore investment
and partnership opportunities in the medical technology and biotech
sectors in the three countries.

ERBRRUEBREFFBENERE > FEOZBERELRARE
REE - BEKRUBTIBERHMRRENRRRFNKER S EHES -

Anchor event to showcase Hong Kong services in the Greater Bay
Areq, attracting more than 1,400 participants. Focus on global
connectivity and collaboration to boost innovation and technology in
the Greater Bay Area.

BEEMEINBEBEARERIRHEMRT > R5|EIE1,400A 24 -
WEERRARIKBBRREE > UEEXRBEAIMBRNER -

Hong Kong Product Zone and Hong Kong Services Zone featured

47 Hong Kong companies. Exhibitors connected with mainland
buyers, distributors and potential business partners, with a number of
companies securing strong orders.

ATREBEEHSHE EERBERE &k FEERREER) > BRHE

X DHBEREEHEBHEIHRE  FORAREEEREE -

Delegation to Zhuhai learned about the development plan for the
logistics park close to the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge and
identified collaborative opportunities in the Greater Bay Area.
RREFEERE > THRBPEBKAABHIYREEE RS > MBE
REEANSERS -

New flagship business-to-consumer promotion which helped Hong
Kong companies test out the Greater Bay Area consumer market.
Some 70 Hong Kong exhibitors featured more than 180 brands and
attracted 130,000 consumers.

BRE-ESFNEERHESE (B2C)EEED > EBEABARNRERK
BEHETHNEN - NTIRFESRHBHAZBED > RTEBHB
1801 A% » IRSI13BEHEE S BIEME -

Forty-seven Hong Kong companies took part in the Hong Kong Product
Zone and Hong Kong Services Zone at the second China International
Import Expo, which was visited by around 500,000 buyers

BB MMEEREORES) RIIASBEZRERSE  4TREHSH [FER
BERE Kk EEERRE] -

participants at the Asian
Financial Forum

FEElERlmiE) B A
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-

One of the 255 one-to-one business matching meetings
that were arranged at Chic HK, HKTDC's new flagship
promotion event in Guangzhou connecting Hong Kong Guangzhou
traders with major buyers and e-tailers A EPREMNEITH
ERBRBHERMBTRMNEERREES 08 -8R & o
2555 —H—HHEN S HHEERREH T BERREE TRIFT AR EERIE

participants at SmartHK in

individual associates of
Federation of Hong Kong

Business Associations worldwide

RKERBEEGEHBERS AR

consumers at
Chic HK, Guangzhou
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As technology continues to reshape
people’s lives and transform industries
around the world, the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council stepped up its efforts
to help small and medium-sized enterprises
(SMEs) adapt to the changes taking place.
From a greater focus on innovation and
technology at our events to improving

our own technological capabilities, we are
committed to supporting Hong Kong's tc t e Future
development as an innovation hub.
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Success Story B I 1B % /01

Buildings often have impressive facades, but hidden flaws can lead to
expensive maintenance problems. Densely developed cities are seeing
a growing demand for “infrastructure-building doctors” which use
artificial intelligence technologies and robotics to find structural flaws
- demand that Hong Kong start-up RaSpect, a Start-up Express winner,
is eager to meet. Following its participation in the HKTDC incubation
programme, the company joined our activities and events, including a
mission to Hungary, CES in Las Vegas and the Asian Financial Forum

in Hong Kong, helping them to connect with potential investors and
overseas partners.

BFEHNEZE EULEBRGERNE #EERASR ADBESHNTERT
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Success Story B I 1B % /02

MatrixSense, a Start-up Express winner, launched the world's first 3D

Al customer service system. Combining self-developed Infanity3D™
hologram technology and a voice recognition model, the system is

now available at MTR Kai Tak Station in Hong Kong. The start-up also
participated in IFA Berlin with the help of the HKTDC and connected with
distributors from different countries - including Greece, Japan, Canada
and Switzerland - who showed keen interest in introducing its products
to their local markets.

FRIERE) BEEZ— > BEURKEEMatrixSenseE HEIREHIDR T A
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CONNECTING TO THE FUTURE #% i 5k 2K

From artificial intelligence (Al) to fintech, from blockchain to biotech,
and from smart cities to Industry 4.0, innovation and technology
continue to reshape businesses, industries and even the way entire
cities and nations are run. Developments happen fast and those that
don't react will be left behind.

In recent years the HKTDC has put a much stronger focus on helping
SMEs adapt to innovation, and this work continued in 2019/20.

We increased our collaboration with technology partners in Hong
Kong and put a greater focus on showcasing innovations and new
technologies at our events, providing vital platforms for local start-
ups. Another key goal was to highlight Hong Kong's advantages as a
tech platform at our overseas events.

Many of our events in Hong Kong have a specific focus on technology
and showcase ways in which SMEs can employ innovation to take
their businesses to the next level.

BB ATIHEERSREE  EESWHHR
MER, ATSZE ERENERTBER > £
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Attended by close to 1,500
professionals from the e-tailing
and related sectors.

Renowned speakers addressed
Internet of Things, Al, big data and
blockchain.

Local SMEs discussed
collaboration with global e-tailers
to extend their businesses into
untapped markets.

1,500 EFHEREMERE
e

HBAEER A N TEE - KH
BRERESEBRERER

Fu i EREREEERESE
RIS

Theme of “Smart City - Smart
Living".
Smart City Zone: 117 exhibitors

from seven countries and regions
(277% increase).

Debut of Smart Government
Pavilion, showcasing a series of
Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (HKSAR) Government-
driven innovation and technology
initiatives.

Co-located with Internet Economy
Summit (IES), organised by the
Office of the Government Chief
Information Officer of the HKSAR
Government and Cyberport,
creating synergies for participants.

TR TEE2Hm - EREE °

BERTEE—11TRRECEE
RESERI 2 R (8 N277%)

AR ERBERE]  RR—R5!
HEBFERFHESNRAIRIER -

B TEMRREIEE FISSR1T 18
EHEBREBNEMRHR BN
AEHRYIEBEMW BB MERE
15 R &

65 fintech start-ups from 11
countries and regions in new
FintechHK Startup Salon.

22 financial institutions and
technology companies showcased
innovative solutions in Al, virtual
banking, cyber security, insurtech
and regtech.

74 partners including venture
capital firms, accelerator
programmes and other enablers
and facilitators from the worldwide
entrepreneurship ecosystem.

65K AR B 111E E R it & i
ERE KR AT 2MFRN
TFintechHK MEIE& | °
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Zones with a specific technology and innovation focus are held

at key HKTDC fairs, helping businesses to capture opportunities
brought about by the digital era. Newly introduced in 2019/20 were
the “Innobuild” zone at the Hong Kong International Lighting Fair
(Spring Edition), “Al & Voice Recognition” zone at the Hong Kong
Electronics Fair (Spring Edition), “Biotechnology" zone at the Hong
Kong International Medical and Healthcare Fair, and “Connected
Living - Smart Home" zone at the Hong Kong International Lighting
Fair (Autumn Edition).

In addition, the “Tech Hall" at the Spring and Autumn Editions of the
Hong Kong Electronics Fair spotlighted game-changing technologies
from 285 exhibitors under different thematic zones.

Technology and innovation has become a key promotional theme at HKTDC events
AR AT EERRLREHEMERNOEHE -

2019/20FE > ZAMETERBERAMBRE
& B TEBERESTRHHE BN TRIHER
E1 ~ TEERETEFERE) B TATER
EEHNEMN EE - EEEKBRAFRE
Bl B TEYREK EEUK TEEEBRNKFE
#MEN) BN TEEEE  S2RE RE > B8
eI S R A 2R B IE o
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Supporting Hong Kong's start-up ecosystem
Fundamental to Hong Kong's strengths as a technology hub is the
nurturing of a start-up ecosystem in the city. Great strides have

been made in recent years, and at the end of 2019 Hong Kong was
home to over 3,000 start-ups — an increase of over 21% compared to
the previous year. We continued our efforts to support vibrant new
companies with events specifically focused on start-up development
along with start-up zones at many of our events in Hong Kong.

Over 500 tech and design start-ups exhibited in start-up zones at
HKTDC fairs. Investor and media pitching, mentoring and sharing
sessions, product launches and investor matchmaking events were
organised in parallel to help nurture start-ups and connect them with
potential business partners worldwide.

IPHatch Hong Kong :
Jumpstarting Your Business

IPHatch#iE %

Past winners of IPHatch Hong Kong at the Business of IP Asia Forum. IPHatch Hong Kong,
an open-innovation competition organised by HKTDC and Piece Future, encourages
start-ups and entrepreneurs to be innovative in using patented technologies provided by
Panasonic, Nokia and ASTRI to create and scale up businesses

HAEBEERF K Piece Future B MM M E R ELEE TPHatch&# ) B2 BMAI R X EER
B > FE A Panasonic ~ Nokia &k & # & R 5 B ST B (ASTRIVIR MY BRI BT RO E A > LUE—
BREB EAEEBHELE TENNSEREHRE 2EER -
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Theme: “The Start-up Living Lab” — how to address
everyday "pain points" in society through innovative
business ideas.

“E-living Hackathon: new pitching event for young
entrepreneurs and students to present innovative ideas to
address issues in our daily lives.

“GBA Compass": new seminar series that examines start-
up related market information in the Greater Bay Area.

TEH Al £5F) > B MAEBAFRNSEES AR
HEEHE

FE-living Hackathon) — B FRAIER RBEMR AV
WEEE)  EMPIRLAIER AR R EEH#AE

REEEM) —MBERTIRNKEEALAEEE
R HE N

Start-up Express
TEY 148

Helped local start-ups to build networks, market their
businesses and enhance brand awareness.

Pitching competition in which 10 winning companies
participated in power meet-up sessions with successful
business leaders, visited high-potential start-up hubs in
exploratory missions, and engaged in marketing and trade
promotions in Hong Kong and overseas.

Competition winners connected with investors, potential
partners and the media.

B A AN R AT R I AR A R EF R IR A AR R E o

I0REBBEXAHFEREES  SERRX AT EREKIIN
EREMEE  2NAREERAEZRENOMAIFLC > I
SREBNBIINNHREHREEEEED -

LEBEBHERREE EESERHREREIME -

HK Startup Society

« An online-to-offline community that connects experienced

founders, incubators, community builders and investors
with high-potential start-ups and young entrepreneurs.

+ Helps foster mentorship, intelligence exchange and

business collaboration.

50+ start-up founders shared insights to help build an elite
start-up community.

B ERTRIME  BREEREBENNANRIABRE
BEERMBERESNEEAMA BEE HHETE
RiGEE -

BB E RS & B R AR EE S E
S0+RABI AR EIMA D Z /88 > HBNE T REEAN AR -

Sergio Pachén, Co-founder and Chief Operating Officer of
Kiwi Campus Inc speaking at Entrepreneur Day

Kiwi Campus IncE & Bl 3 A 38 & f& & & B Sergio Pachon 5 TRl
Hl BRER -
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RS (= TR D D

In addition to nurturing start-ups and fostering a technology culture PRIZEAB DA RERER &R ES > RFAEEM *8 ANRIABR TuEimARAENLE
in Hong Kong, a lot of effort went into promoting the city's technology ®E&ZZRE UK HMHFREEEESE > T85 ]

advantage overseas, through business missions and participation in BIBEESBNRRES -

world-class international events. Tokyo and Seoul R R K& #

Shenzhen Municipal Foreign Affairs Office ‘& IIITH A RBUFFIN B AZE

o . ) Promote the technology strengths of the Greater Bay Area
HKTDC Deputy Executive Director Patrick Lau (sixth from left) BEASB RS ES
= N 7= @ BY 15

and HKTDC Council Member Dr Sunny Chai (fourth from left)
led 50 delegates to Japan and Korea and promoted Greater

Bay Area opportunities for the technology sector in a seminar Company visits, business matching, networking events and seminars giving

; ;Igd g ;:;ﬁ;@ﬁ T (N RESHEEENERASRBNL practical advice on how to use Hong Kong and Shenzhen as platforms to
(EM)RERS0E LR RERAAREE » TERRETHNE explore opportunities in the Greater Bay Area
BEXEEAR REBRLE o TESE HERH RAEBRBE N AEREERRIITE AR

AERMEREEERRE

San Diego and Los Angeles B2 3¢ B 58 2 i
Cyberport and Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks £1#%# K& & # # £ E

Winners from the Start-up Express pitching competition, business and start-up representatives from various
technology sectors

RIS SEHBIERE AR RAATAS BESERERR o e S Enes G Uzt el ey (el e ]

- -G
Smart city development, fintech, the Internet of Things, education technology, health technology and robotics Atz Ak 2 F

BEEHTHEE  EREE - YA HERHE  BRBR R A

From Al and smart home, to Internet of Things (IoT) and medical and
healthcare wearables

MATERIEERE VA UEZBRFERNAIZHEE

Networking events, visits to local enterprises and marketing briefings

REE s 2BREMEERTH/N

220 business matching meetings and Hong Kong reception organised
with the support of the HKSAR Government Economic and Trade Office
in San Francisco, attended by 240, so Hong Kong exhibitors could

Valuable insights into technology applications and the start-up ecosystem in the United States. Several
Californian enterprises showed a keen interest in collaborating with Hong Kong companies

RE z8 3 = HEE = E" == ‘A,\: T i‘\, N .\Eé o .

A Tl 2 R SRR S L B LI S L e A MedEXO Robotics received an Innovation Award Honoree title network with CES attendees
at CES, where it participated as part of a group of Hong Kong BRTASAERTHT2205mERE &N RANESBHERT
start-ups led by the HKTDC HERmKEESMERENSE T BN T 5EBMNEE > ®5(240
EREERTARUMA2N TARHBEEFR) - EFEERE A EE B2 EEA RN EETEAMER T o

CESRI M BA R M FL 5 -

"Hong Kong Pavilion” at BIO
International Convention in
Philadelphia
EEEERBTHIEEEYEI L ERIL EHEE
. Partner S1EEM¥:

g Kong Tech and Start-up Mission o
San Diogo, Orange County and Los Angeles, US4,

Hom

. Participants 2i01% :

. Sectors £l :

HKTDC Deputy Executive Director Patrick Lau (centre) led a tech and start-up mission to California . « Activities ;58 :
EREERRERANET (R EERRRMEICEAMEZEMMER o -
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Improving the stakeholder experience through IT

In addition to promoting Hong Kong as a centre for innovation, we
have also been adopting new technologies to enhance the level of
service which the HKTDC provides to fair participants and other
stakeholders.

Latest e-payment tech at trade fairs

Commercial sponsors, from industries including banking, finance
and travel, promoted their services through our platforms such as
the HKTDC Marketplace App, Exhibition Online and trade fairs. This
model has enriched the total experience for stakeholders and helped
to bring value to the fairs.

For example, some local e-payment solution providers offered
incentives to exhibitors to use the latest e-payment technologies at
three of our consumer fairs.

Better website functions and features

We introduced new features to our website in response to buyers’
increasing interest in manufacturers with production capabilities
outside Mainland China:

« Indicator showing advertisers’ and exhibitors' production locations
in Southeast Asia, South Asig, the Middle East and Africa

« Seven new languages making a total of 16

Tech-focused marketing

+ Launched localised marketing content for worldwide market-
specific platforms such as search engines and social media

» Organised 13 capacity-building workshops on topics such as
business-to-business social marketing, "key opinion leader" (KOL)
marketing and digital transformation

Served 922 attendees from 759 companies

g Ken semational Dpdical Fuv_j:f'

R TR : '!
| ﬁJ Hal

Buyers registering for e-badges at a HKTDC fair
BERNEBEG LEREABETABE
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HKTDC fair websites, hktdc.com Sourcing, HKTDC
Marketplace App and HKTDC Enterprise Yearbook

won 37 international awards from Internet Advertising
Competition, Communicator Awards, Questar Awards,
ASTRID Awards, and many more

EREERNEEME . TBEUFRE, - THEERBET
BAPPR (BB BB EEEFET) > MiSInternet Advertising
Competition ~ Communicator Awards » Questar Awards K&z ASTRID
Awards % 3T{E Bl PR 42 IE o

We continued to enhance our chatbot service to get users effectively engaged and allow
the HKTDC to provide interactive, round-the-clock services and information. We rolled
out more chatbot touchpoints over the course of 2019/20 covering exhibition and event
websites, corporate websites and the HK Startup Society website to provide an enhanced

userexpeﬂence

RMEERAMREM AR  UEERMBBRAR  TREEZRENESHRFRE
M o2019/20FE > EMEEZRAMREHA > BERETRIFEHALE - EEHILK
HK Startup Society 48t > A FIREEERN R ©

messages received from 2R E

unique users FiF

of messages were sourcing-related

B ELERAEAERA
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10AREREHES

messages of the top 10 active locations were in different - s 5 i
time zones from Hong Kong WA e my a4 el om Lin ) Eg o
KB REEFBUIME

of users communicated during non-working hours Tifpe & mietiage

FAERIEMARRETEE

Improved HKTDC Marketplace App and e-Badge
A IEEERBFEAPP) REFAZHEINGE

860,000+

40%

96,785

New push notifications
and banners

MEERBNREERES

Enhanced digital touchpoints

EFHR IR
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133M

15,000+ 1.6M
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Alongside our ongoing work to
support local businesses, the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council
continued to give back to the Hong
Kong community in various ways, with
a special focus on the development

of young people. We also lived up to
our commitment to becoming a more

@
Comm umty

EREERERRTRAEZBAMDLZS > 75
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No organisation exists in isolation, and the HKTDC is very much an
integral part of the business community it serves — on a citywide level
and also within the Wan Chai community we call home.

Our corporate social responsibility efforts in 2019/20 encompassed a
broad range of activities - from nurturing young people and engaging
members of the local community to inviting community participation
at our events in Hong Kong. We also kept a strong focus on developing
our team and providing a rewarding place in which to work.

Developing the leaders of tomorrow

Today's young people are the future of Hong Kong, and part of

our mission at the HKTDC is to help prepare our youth for future
success. In 2019/20, we stepped up our efforts to engage the young
by adopting a “total solutions” approach to help them build networks
and seek career and business opportunities.

Trade Ambassador Programme (TAP)

This programme helps Hong Kong tertiary students develop
leadership and entrepreneurial skills and act as trade ambassadors for
the city. In 2019/20:

More than 2,300 students registered, bringing TAP membership to
some 14,000

CEOs and HKTDC economists shared insights with TAP members

Visits to renowned enterprises in Hong Kong and Mainland China

« Training and networking opportunities offered by youth
organisations, youth chambers, youth sections of trade and
industry associations and professional training institutions

(left) brief the Trade Ambassadors on opportunities in the ASEAN region
BB BERE N R T 15 B IR B E AR BN R AR () R A B MK 8 () M B AR TR o
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HKTDC Assistant Principal Economist (Asian and Emerging Markets) Wenda Ma (right) and HKTDC Economist Jenny Lam
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Young talent
on the Belt and Road

BFEAEE I—%—5%, HE

In a dedicated session at the Belt and Road Summit, leaders
from fields such as technology, transportation and logistics,
fintech and infrastructure development shared their first-hand
experiences and insights on Belt and Road-related career
opportunities for young people.

£ I—%—K SERENEESREL RERE BHKEY
M ERBRERERRRETENEM 5 M—F K1 AN
MERS BAERAIEZMANRSCRNRE -

Inspiring students at HKTDC events
Students were also supported with opportunities to get experience at
HKTDC events. Programmes included:

« Design competitions such as the Hong Kong Watch and Clock
Design Competition and the Hong Kong Eyewear Design
Competition, with winning designs showcased to international
buyers at relevant trade fairs

« Art Gallery Student Ambassador Programme at the Hong Kong
Book Fair enhanced secondary school students’ knowledge of
Chinese culture

« Eco Student Ambassador Programme at Eco Expo Asia recruited
postgraduate students as ambassadors to accompany visiting VIPs

- Briefings on design-thinking and innovation were given to 459
students at Designlnspire

« Musical and show performances by Hong Kong Federation of
Youth Groups and music school students at Hong Kong Book Fair

« Hands-on experience for F&B management students at Hong
Kong International Wine & Spirits Fair, in collaboration with the
Vocational Training Council

Sixteen young people from Belt and Road economies
were recruited to take part in an internship that gave
them the opportunity to work in Hong Kong, visit
innovation and environmental protection platforms
and cultural landmarks and attend networking events.
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The Hong Kong International Licensing Show featured the Design Licensing and Business support scheme
(DLAB) to promote Hong Kong's young designers and homegrown intellectual properties (IPs)
TEBEREERE) LR TEBR:t - WX B8 (DLAB)  HERBHFE R RAAENMHERER -

Supporting young professionals SSIFEFERES

HKTDC events provided development and exposure opportunities for BEEERRMNEITAERESIRMBRE KRB

young professionals. Examples include: HE flFaE:

« “Start-up Square” at the Home Delights Expo, run in partnership . BHEBPEEEHSFS £ TXE - Km
with the Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong, provided a platform for 16 -BE ) ERIT THAIY) » Rl6IFREX
young entrepreneurs to promote their products and services to RRERAHEEREERRRBNTES -
consumers. . TEIEBHEE,

. Designlinspire - BR124EAMIBER > B8FEQN100UEF B
- Featured 124 local projects - including works by about 100 Hong FRREAMBIEmR

Kong young designers. - EREEZE RBBEER— Y 8
- “Retrolnnovations” exhibited installations by 26 young design A RAB BT FERRAMNES
talents in Harbour City in the lead-up to the expo. fEdm e

- Hong Kong International Licensing Show . TEBERBER

- Featured the Design Licensing and Business support scheme - TEER:-BEXESE (DLAB)EE
(DLAB) to promote Hong Kong's young designers and 7 7 B9 6 5K 5% 51 A R 7S 3 B R RY R o A= A
homegrown intellectual properties (IPs). HE -

— 20 young IPs were provided with opportunities to present their - RLAEEENBERENFEE ARMHE
brand stories to buyers. g ABERN BB @R E -

The Young
Executive
Programme
FEITHAAHE
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Engaging the local community BEAM B

The HKTDC has long maintained a close connection to the Wan ERERRBMZNEF EFRLREENE R
Chai community where our headquarters are located and many of HEERET AM—BEREFHERSERH
our fairs and conferences are held. We continue to work closely with - RMERLERETEESRUAE 2 Y

the Wan Chai District Council and endeavour to bring our events to BREEZEERTRSM.
life for local people.

» What: Effective marketing skills for street
market vendors

« Who: 90+ participants; partnered with Youth for
Wan Chai (YFWC)

c B ATmEERERARN TR EHKT
« BHEI+BEME  BFEEZRAMIIEE

» What: Overseas buyers at the HKTDC Hong
Kong Gifts & Premium Fair explored Wan Chai
with young residents as their guides

« Who: Partnered with the YFWC

e 1 _ o AT e i :
) B s AE HERFRAREEN  %E (5886
Overseas buyers from the HKTDC Hong Kong Gifts & Premium Fair taking part in the R RE] BN ERIETRF

“Explore Wan Chai” cultural tour -
KESH EEUSRRARE NENERSR (BREF XCEEE - o Bt D EFEFZRLHMREE

+ What: Citywide campaign with 350 activities to
promote the joy of reading, culture and art

+ Who: 95,000+ participants and 140+ campaign
partners

- AR ERBRTI50EEF  EEMBRLBRK
X1 &l

o Bf¥: 95,000+ B2MERBI4IESIEBH

+ What: A cuisine map of Wan Chai District
highlighting almost 200 eateries

Gasiaasmnnns co

« Who: Partnered with the Cultural and Leisure
Services Committee of Wan Chai District Council
and the Community Centre Services of St. James'
Settlement

- AT I NABE00REFRENEZRME

) . . , ) ) . B BEFESEENRREEHZEGRER
Co-organised with Youth Square, the “Youth-themed Movie Week” showcased six movies EEE G E IR TS (R

from Belt and Road economies at Youth Square Y theatre and Broadway Cinematheque,
and organised a seminar series

HEFESAN B3H  HABEXEXE) > NEEEBYVREERAEEEE P OMBAE
kE M—%—K QEERNER  LRR—RTIHFE-
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Helping improve lives
The HKTDC makes a concerted effort to live up to its corporate social
responsibilities by helping underprivileged members of society.

Among the events and initiatives organised in 2019/20 were:

Fifteen staff collected unsold food from a wet market to distribute I 1
to the elderly —
EETEETHEERERY » KETFRE °

Staff took 30 underprivileged children to enjoy a fun day out
BIHHERBBRBHIMNLE—K -

Lantern-making workshop for the elderly and distributing gift
packs at old people’'s homes
EMERREHHRESH  UERERKEERE

Taking underprivileged children on a Wan Chai heritage tour
HESBRESEREFHNELERE -

Our staff supported four fundraisers, including Sowers Action, for
which they entered seven teams

tkBh55 S 4L 8%
EBBERBETCEMTERMT AFAREES
EROHELEREMAL.

HMIE2019/20F ERBNEFH KRB EE:

Organised by St. James Settlement, staff helped repack
rice into smaller packages to give to the needy

FRETAMESTERH S > SFKH CRAESREETEN THE FREET2HAERKEHGIMNED > HHIEERERE
12NEEBHIRY © ENE  REFAEBENAL -

Reinforcing our core values

The HKTDC core values of building trust, developing new frontiers,
creating value and showing commitment were reinforced during

the year through core-value workshops. Staff members who best
personified these values and demonstrated a commitment to
promoting the Hong Kong platform and maximising opportunities for
SMEs were recognised in an award programme.

ZEZOEE

BREBNITHEH UZEEBELERNOZOE
B RIEE - ZEERFTHR - RIZEERBENKE-
BPUESETENERELRRRB AL B &
ERFRELEEEIRNHEETBERETAMAS
NERIPEHE T

New recruits learn about HKTDC's core values and experience of embracing challenges at workshops
MABBT2HT Y TREBBEB/NZOEBERDHET LHKER -
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All Commitment Awards nominators, winners and honourable mentions pictured together with members of the Directorate

EREEREERAZBRBARRNMARBANGRESR -

HKTDC

Commitment Awards
ERERERERER

; H : ; Award #2185 :
Strengthening international ties S s Award
5% B B e 22 B R A

Initiating and co-organising a Canada-related event under the inaugural "Belt and Road
Week', the tenacious and proactive approach taken by the Toronto office in fostering the
Hong Kong-Canadian partnership resulted in the largest delegation to the Belt and Road
Summit from a Western country.

Reaching global buyers ANEIE] S
il Branch Office Award
EHR2EKE S BRI R R4S

The Nanjing office has worked closely with the Publications and E-commerce
department to promote the latter's online-to-offline services, resulting in a new initiative
of 3D display called Image Glass to showcase Nanjing products at the HKTDC Hong
Kong Electronics Fair. Image Glass was linked with our Small Orders online platform to
add value for buyers, generate extra product exposure at the fairground, boost buyer
traffic for the Nanjing online pavilion and create new revenue for Publications and
E-commerce.

Battling challenges ford R
MEELHPEE Ex S fri

As the world media broadcast images of the social unrest in Hong Kong, the crisis
management team worked with head office departments, branch offices, the Hong Kong
Convention and Exhibition Centre and other organisations to communicate a "business
as usual" message, thereby reinforcing traders' confidence in the business environment
and safety of Hong Kong. As a result, all our events went ahead as scheduled and were
well-attended.

Venturing new frontiers Avard STl :
. = Team Award
B0 R i U B i

Entering into its fourth year, the Belt and Road Summit had grown to a two-day event
with an increased number of activities. To sustain momentum, the project team secured
heavyweight speakers and introduced new topics and sessions that were well-attended.
Thanks to their efforts, the event attracted a record attendance of more than 5000
participants from 67 countries and regions.

Winner B ©
Toronto team
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Winner B§H#E :
Nanjing team
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Winner & :
HKTDC fairs crisis management project team
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Winner B :
Belt and Road Summit 2019 project team
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Working for a greener world
The HKTDC implemented various green measures within its
operations, both at our fairs and in our offices. In 2019/20 we:

Increased our recycling collection cages, the frequency of
emptying them and signage at the fairgrounds

Set up book donation sites at the HKTDC Hong Kong Book Fair to
distribute to people in need with the help of Christian Action, Chu
Kong Plan and the Salvation Army

Expanded the utensil-lending service we introduced with
BottlLess and Bupa at the HKTDC Food Expo, providing around
5,000 reusable food containers, 5,000 stainless steel forks, 2,000
reusable cups and two self-service cleaning stations for visitors who
brought their own utensils

« Continued to collect and recycle packaged edible food and food
waste at the fairground to donate food to needy communities in
collaboration with Food Angel and Food for Good

—

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service (HKCSS) honoured
the HKTDC with the “Caring Organisation” award for the 15th
consecutive year

EREERERISFERBHIMBHTMEE TRORME RS-

@ 3,300

The HKTDC Call Centre won the “Gold Award" for the Mystery Caller Assessment
Award (Phone-in) — Commerce & Utilities at the 2019 Hong Kong Call Centre
Association Awards for the fifth consecutive year

ERBERTRAMBENLERAEFESF2019F TEBFFPLBERE B THRER

HBAK - BERABEH -

« Sent green tips to exhibitors on using energy-saving light bulbs or LED
lights, reducing plastic bag use, using digital signage and lowering the
maximum booth height to save on construction materials

® ° « Promoted recycling at the HKTDC Hong Kong Book Fair with
Bu,’d’ng p- | the "ExhiBit” mascot and 50 young environmental ambassadors
winning team assisting exhibitors and public visitors to separate and recycle waste

2 17 3 By B P

Continued to promote good environmental practices with over
450,000 buyers using e-Badges by the end of 2019/20

+ Reduced paper usage with increased digitalisation of our fair and
conference promotional materials such as mobile apps, QR codes
to download guide maps, and digital versions of catalogues.

Internal environmental efforts

We continued working to reduce our own environmental footprint.
New initiatives included a passenger lift replacement programme at
our Tseung Kwan O Logistics Centre, scheduled for completion in 2021.
The new lifts will consume 20% of the electricity of the previous ones.

LIVE HEALTHK
LIVE GREEN.

ar a Baalthicr, greener,
fter lOMOMoW

.
i

Reusable food containers and utensils-lending service at the HKTDC Food Expo
EREH) RERREAMGARS -

The 2016-intake executive trainees celebrate their graduation after successfully completing the three-year training programme
2016 F ABMTHRABBINHB2E TR =FERIG > NBEBEAR -
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The HKCEC mascot “ExhiBit" promoting recycling at the
Hong Kong Book Fair
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The Year
Ahead

X F 5t 21

Hong Kong continues to face significant
pressures, and businesses of all sizes will
need to find ways to rise to the challenges.
In the face of strong headwinds, the

Hong Kong Trade Development Council
will work harder and more creatively to
generate opportunities for Hong Kong and
support the city’'s small and medium-sized
enterprises (SMEs).

EEEMBNEBARANE  FRARENEFRITE
SREREHAB -ERINEEERT EE
BEZERERNESHNEEERAT - 2EE
MEME XEXRBPRNEE
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At the time of reporting, the COVID-19 outbreak was forcing
extraordinary emergency public health measures in countries across
the globe. While the world waits for success in efforts to control the
pandemic, it also looks ahead with concern to what is expected

to be a period of economic hardship. Undoubtedly, Hong Kong will

encounter significant challenges and uncertainty in 2020 and beyond.

Global economic headwinds will continue to affect export prospects
and put pressure on SMEs, while the city recovers from the impact of
social unrest and the fight against COVID-19.

The HKTDC will have to be focused in how we tackle the formidable
challenges ahead and agile enough to respond as circumstances
change in what is a volatile and unprecedented situation. We will
continue to build on the initiatives we have already put in place to
support SMEs and help Hong Kong maintain its position as a global
business and investment hub.

2020/21 marks the beginning of a new three-year planning cycle for
the HKTDC. Our core goal remains unchanged and our key objectives
have been set with the aim of maintaining Hong Kong's strengths
and competitive edge. We will capitalise on the work done in previous
planning cycles and work harder and more creatively to generate
opportunities for Hong Kong and provide greater support for its SMEs
no matter how challenging the environment.

Fundamental to our medium-term objectives will be to reinforce
Hong Kong's position as a hub for trade and investment and as a
great place to conduct business, underpinned by the opportunities
presented by the Belt and Road Initiative and the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area Development Plan.

As we move into the new three-year cycle, we have set clear
objectives for 2020/21 that will help create and facilitate business,
underline Hong Kong as a global investment hub and help nurture
an international entrepreneurial ecosystem for Hong Kong in the
digital era.

ERRARSHE > 2XHEMREBERIE > &
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Exploring new markets

In 2019, as businesses began to feel the impact of the Sino-US trade
conflict and a global slowdown, we began helping SMEs diversify
into new markets as well as expand in mature markets. This initiative
proved effective and will continue through 2020. At the same time,
new initiatives and event formats will be introduced to boost SMEs'
market access and intensify our overseas promotions.

Specifically, a new programme called “Made in ASEAN for ASEAN"
will help Hong Kong SMEs capitalise on manufacturing, sourcing

and marketing opportunities in the fast-growing Association of
Southeast Asian Nations (ASEAN). As the income levels of ASEAN
consumers continue to soar, along with the demand for better-quality
and design-led lifestyle products, Hong Kong is well-positioned to
penetrate this growing consumer market.

Through “Made in ASEAN for ASEAN" we will help SMEs explore the
business potential of key ASEAN economies, organising missions

that will offer more information on government incentives, local sales
policies, tax issues and post-production distribution channels to assist
Hong Kong SMEs to explore manufacturing-for-local sales. We will
match SMEs not just with importers but also distributors, wholesalers,
retail buyers and concept stores, and will organise visits to potential
industry parks in priority markets.

Another core strategy will be to continue extending Hong Kong's
penetration into the Mainland China domestic market. In January
2020 we launched our new Chic HK event in Guangzhou to showcase
the quality of Hong Kong's products and services. Following the
success of the inaugural event, we plan to stage the next Chic HK as a
digital edition targeting specific sectors in different cities. In addition,
building on the success of our Hong Kong Pavilions at the first two
editions of the China International Import Expo (CIIE) in Shanghai, we
will look to expand our presence at CIIE while enhancing the profile
and number of Hong Kong pavilions at sectoral trade fairs across the
mainland as soon as the public health situation has normalised.

Solutions for SMEs

This year will see the HKTDC put a specific focus on the digital
economy and exploring strategic partnerships with major technology
partners that can enable us to provide more digital marketing and
e-commerce solutions for local SMEs. We aim to find ways to enable
them to synergistically participate in areas of new technology and
connectivity, including artificial intelligence (Al), fintech, smart city
development, the Internet of Things and 5G.
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In late 2019, we piloted a programme called "T-box" ("Transformation
Sandbox") which leverages the convenience of our SME Centre to help
companies complete specific business transformation goals, working
through common "pain points" such as relocation, rebranding and
e-commerce, providing advisory services and empowering companies
to enter new markets.

We will enhance our world-class exhibitions by enriching our
exhibition portfolio, increasing investments in buyer recruitment and
launching innovative digital offerings to help businesses access new
opportunities.

We will also overhaul our own hktdc.com Sourcing platform, which
has 130,000 suppliers and two million registered international buyers.
With Al, big data analytics and machine learning data modelling,
the revamped platform will provide a more customised, relevant and
efficient experience for suppliers and buyers.

Supporting start-ups

Our commitment to nurturing a sustainable entrepreneurial
ecosystem in Hong Kong will continue, with a strong focus on the
continued development of Hong Kong as Asia’s start-up hub by
nurturing and mentoring start-ups and connecting them with global
business communities.

We will leverage our Start-up Express programme, which assists

local start-ups in network-building, marketing and branding, to

build stronger business collaboration between past participants and
members of the HK Startup Society. The society offers a platform for
individual start-ups to share information on practical skills training
and receive career mentoring, and in the coming year we will conduct
promotional campaigns to encourage society members to make full
use of this online platform. We will also launch a new programme
called Enterprise Connect at our annual Entrepreneur Day to create
a two-way marketplace in which enterprises can seek solutions to
business cases from start-ups, and start-ups can pitch to enterprises.

Maintaining focus

These are undoubtedly difficult times for Hong Kong, but the HKTDC
has confidence in the city, its people and its businesses. Leveraging
our three-year plan we will work closely with all stakeholders to take
our offerings to the next level and equip Hong Kong businesses to
navigate the challenges and succeed over the long term.
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Corporate

Governance
1% g &8

The Hong Kong Trade Development Council is a
statutory organisation governed by the HKTDC
Ordinance (Chapter 1114 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

It is committed to demonstrating high standards

of corporate governance, both as a statutory body

in the public service and as an organisation with a
responsibility to show leadership in best practices to
Hong Kong's business community. It places high priority
on accountability and responsible financial management
which underpin good corporate governance, as well as
corporate social responsibility.

ERERURRRREERERERBHRO(FRIEFFELLL4
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Council

The HKTDC benefits from the advice and direction of a 19-member
Council established under the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council Ordinance. The Council met four times during the 2019/20
financial year.

Staff and Finance Committee

The Council's work is supported by a Staff and Finance Committee,
whose membership is drawn from members of the Council. The
Committee reviews and recommends to the Council on financial
matters, including budget estimates, financial management

control and accounting procedures. It also reviews and provides
recommendations to the Council on staff-related matters such as
human resources policy, terms and conditions of employment, and the
appointment of senior management positions. The Committee met
four times in the past financial year.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Council in ensuring high standards
of financial control and compliance. Comprising the chairmen of
the standing committees, which consist of the Staff and Finance
Committee, Product Promotion Programme Committee, and
Service Promotion Programme Committee, the Audit Committee

is responsible for directing and advising on the work of the HKTDC
Internal Audit Department. This includes reviewing the annual audit
plan, assurance of adequate audit coverage of internal operations
and audit findings, and monitoring the implementation of actions
arising from the audit reports. The Committee also reviews the annual
audited financial statements. The Committee met two times in the
past financial year.

Corporate social responsibility

Good governance is central to a broader commitment to corporate
social responsibility, which promotes better and more prudent
management. As a conscientious employer and a leading trade

and services promotion organisation, the HKTDC always strives to
improve its corporate social responsibility practices and policies, while
contributing to the encouragement of responsible and sustainable
business processes. In 2019/20, the HKTDC was awarded the Hong
Kong Quality Assurance Agency CSR Advocate Mark for the eighth
consecutive year. This was also the second year in a row that we
attained the highest rating, "5", in recognition of our achievements

in corporate social responsibility. And for the 15th consecutive year,
the HKTDC earned the “Caring Organisation” title, bestowed by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service, in recognition of the Council's
initiatives for employee welfare, the community and the environment.
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as of 31t March 2020

Membership of Committees
ZEEMRE
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Staff and Finance Committee
Ms Shirley Chan, B8S, JP (Chairman)
Mr Jason Chiu

Mr Michael Hui, MH, JP

Ms Edith Law, uP

Mr Brian Li, uP

Dr YK Pang, GBS, JP

Mr Ricky Tsang, JP

Mr Andrew Weir, MBE

The Hon Edward Yau, GBS, JP

Dr Daniel Yip

Ms Margaret Fong

Audit Committee

Ms Shirley Chan, B88S, Jp (Chairman)
Dr Jonathan Choi, GBS, BBS, JP

Mr Michael Hui, MH, JP

Product Promotion Programme Committee
Mr Michael Hui, MH, JP (Chairman)
Dr Sunny Chai, BBS

Mr Rex Chang, JP

Mr Eric Chong

Dr Alan Lam

Ms Edith Law, uP

Dr Dennis Ng, BBS, MH

Mr Brian Sun

Mr Willie Tan

Mr John Tong

Mr Kenneth Wong

Mr Kent Wong

The Hon Edward Yau, GBS, JP

Ms Margaret Fong

Service Promotion Programme Committee
Dr Jonathan Choi, GBS, BBS, JP (Chairman)
Prof KC Chan, GBS, JP

Mr Johnny Chan

Mr Rex Chang, JP

Mr Jason Chiu

Mr Nicholas Ho

Dr Anne Kerr

Mr Johnson Kong

Mr CK Kwong, JP

Dr Kelvin Leung

Mr Steve Leung

Mr Ng Cheung Shing

The Hon Edward Yau, GBS, JP

Mr Stanley Yeung, JP

Ms Margaret Fong
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Directorate and Senior Staff
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Executive Director
Margaret Fong

Directorate
Benjamin Chau

Deputy Executive Director
Patrick Lau

Deputy Executive Director
Sophia Chong

Assistant Executive Director
Christine Cheung

Assistant Executive Director

Stephen Liang

Assistant Executive Director
Senior Staff

Head Office

Jenny Koo

Director, Exhibitions Market Development
Nicholas Kwan

Director of Research

Yvonne So

Director, Corporate Communications and Marketing
Johnny Wan

Director, Publications & E-Commerce
Regina Lai

Director, Product Promotion

Iris Wong

Director, Belt and Road & External Relations

Anna Cheung

Director, Service Promotion

Regional Offices

Ralph Chow

Regional Director, Americas

William Chui

Regional Director, Europe, Central Asia & Israel
Brian Ng

Director, Chinese Mainland

Daniel Lam

Regional Director, Middle East & Africa

Silas Chu

Director, Japan

Peter Wong
Regional Director, South East Asia & South Asia
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Independent Auditor's Report & 1L 1% 21 iR &

TO THE COUNCIL OF HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council Ordinance)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong
Trade Development Council (“HKTDC") and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) set out on pages 84 to 133, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated
income and expenditure account, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the
consolidated statement of changes in funds for the year then ended, and
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2020,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA").

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The Council of the HKTDC (the “Council”) is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in
the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the

other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
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HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &2 & 5 % B /5 & ¥ 2019/20

Independent Auditor's Report &1L 1% 21 ik &

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT (Cont’d)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COUNCIL, STAFF AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Council, supported by the Staff and Finance Committee, is responsible for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and Section 23 of
the Hong Kong Trade Development Council Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council is responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless there are events or conditions that have caused or
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

The Council is assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 24 of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor's Report & 1L 1% 21 iR &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group'’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the Council.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

82

BB EA RS M BRRAE ZEME (F)

ERB(EBEAENETEF 2BERET &
PIER T EXHE - RETERREEE - T
Ii

= 5

o BAIMFAEARKFRERMEBEAY
BRRGFAEBRBRE M Z ER Rt R
HITEAEFARSELAR A RER
ZARMEE < BFHEE EREMERZ
E@R-mnRRFARSRER BE B
BER ERRAL - EBRAFMES 2
£ ENRREHRARGFEME R 2 EANE
AR 2 BB = R AE B IR E R AR T B
ZEARH R 2 BB o

e HEREBRSHMIAMES  ARFTEE
ZEFREF OBENLHEE EXEARE
ZHZARMEERER -

e HEEFEEMRAEHABRZIREMERE
SRt AEEREZ A

e HERERARBKLOMERZREN
EhEwm - RIBEMERZEBRE BT
EEFEREEABFAEENERNTEE
HE-REMAEEHY BESEENFELSE
RNELEBERRERE WREMBA/FEE
ATEEY  ABELEEREMBE PR
BERAEIREAMBRMERT ZHEMME -
SERMcBRESNR  MRFMEEHERIE
BEREER - BMIzEmEENZEENR
SFH ARG ZETERRE - AM - RRE
BHFERATRER EEETRFERLE -

e HEFAMBHRRZEBRBIGHSTA &8
MAR BREEE URGEEHBHRRE
BHRERMZHMER -

e H BEEERNERIEXBEIIUBER
ERFER HEE2BRNERE URHKEA
MBEBRERBERL -RMAE EKEE
F2hm BEEMAT - RPABFER
AEZHEE-



HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &2 & 5 % B /5 & ¥ 2019/20

Independent Auditor's Report & 3L 1% SiEMER &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

4 June 2020
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Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account 43 & Utz &

For the year ended 31 March
BE3H31BLFE

Notes
(HK$'000) (B TIT) B 5 2020 2019
INCOME L'ON
Government subvention BRI # 3X 5(a) 441,523 435,523
Income generated from operational s SE BT A 5(b)
activities
— Exhibitions and missions -~ BFREe NHHEE 1,485,408 2,002,179
— Product magazines and online - EmMEAIBELEBEYA 123,176 150,204
marketplace
— HKCEC operation - ERERRRETLEE 142,885 187,971
— Other operational income — Hage g A 46,878 61,336
1,798,347 2,401,690
Investment (loss)/income RE (1) s (34,017) 83,216
Interest on bank deposits RITFE T B 11,194 10,359
Miscellaneous income RETE UG 2% 12,096 12,651
1,787,620 2,507,916
TOTAL INCOME LONL 2,229,143 2,943,439
EXPENDITURE ]
Staff costs BB KA 6 823,189 788,994
Office expenses WAEER 146,941 130,104
Exhibitions and missions BoREe hifEE 1,095,296 1,359,233
Other promotional activities H At EEE) 429,557 413,648
Trade-related activities B o5 20,645 18,375
Exchange differences PE N =58 3,392 8,976
Depreciation of property, plant and M- REREMZTER 7, 8(a) 132,202 135,357
equipment and amortisation of 3 {5 PR 2 5
land use rights
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE RERSIMZ (64) 137
plant and equipment (Weas) EiE
TOTAL EXPENDITURE X 2,651,158 2,854,824
(Deficit)/surplus before finance costs B ERA (ER) At (422,015) 88,615
Interest on bank borrowings RITERF A 14 (16) (783)
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEHNE 8(c) (1,259) =
(Deficit)/surplus for the year TEE (BB Btk (423,290) 87,832
Transfer from/(to) Other Specific BREa /(D HMBTES 19 26,368 (168,996)
Funds
Transfer from General Fund EEATRES 16 396,922 81,164
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income {3 & 2 E U m &

For the year ended 31 March
BE3H31BLFE

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &2 & 5 % B /5 & ¥ 2019/20

Notes
(HK$'000) (BEFIT) Bt 2020 2019
(Deficit/surplus for the year X% (B#R) &K (423,290 87,832
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/  Hhb2mEWE (ZH)

(EXPENSE)
ltem that will not be reclassified to SWEHDEZW AL

income or expenditure: fi HEIER:

— Actuarial loss on defined benefit — A ERARKET S 6(b)(ii), 19 (57,457) (23,490)
o tetrement schemes B e
ltems that may be reclassified Hifg Al e E T D B E A S

subsequently to income or X H®IER:

expenditure:

— Realisation of derivative financial — PTEEm T AEEIR 19 2,366 (9,852)

instruments

— Fair value loss on derivative — FRUTESRMIT A 19 (2,289) (2,605)

financial instruments at year end AR EEEE
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 7 (2457
Other comprehensive expense for AEEHMEEZH (57,380) (35,947)
AR AT
Total comprehensive (expense)/ AEERE(ZE) WEHEE (480,670) 51,885

income for the year
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 45 & B4 # A &

As at 31 March

M3 HA31H
Notes
(HK$'000) (BT T) B 2 2020 2019
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R REBEM 7 1,033,096 1,313,256
Land use rights o b {5 A 8(a) - 44,763
Right-of-use assets FRESE 8(b) 289,828 =
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Accounts receivable, deposits and FEMEESK - 3] & RIBI FKIA 10 133,582 232,695
prepayments
Fixed-income and equity securities & F W s B B AN 35 5 11 2,119,497 2,152,749
Cash and bank balances B RETERF 13 461,939 779,558
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 2,715,018 | 3,165,002
Total Assets EE#E 4,037,942 4,523,021
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Defined benefit retirement scheme AEBAEBNRTEEE 6(b)(iii) 193,788 124,886
liabilities
Lease liabilities HEBE 8(c) 30,396 =
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 224,184 124,886
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBaE
Accounts payable, accruals and FERTBRSR - FEFTIEE & 15 950,253 1,067,001
other payables H b f& 5 FRIE
Bank borrowings IRITE XK 14 - 18,000
Derivative financial instruments PTETmIEA 12 4,747 2,366
Lease liabilities HEBE 8(c) 28,660 =
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 983,660 1,087,367
Total Liabilities EEHEE 1,207,844 1,212,253
Net Assets EEFE 2,830,098 3,310,768
Financed By: BEWIR
GENERAL FUND LEES 16 1,262,862 1,340,019
RESERVE FUND HEES 17 1,066,594 1,175,246
EXHIBITION CONTRACTING BREAGRKES 18 183,586 181,763
SERVICES FUND
OTHER SPECIFIC FUNDS Hti$EES 19 317,056 613,740
Total Funds EELHE 2,830,098 3,310,768

Dr Peter K N Lam ass
Chairman of HKTDC

MEEREL 2u5==
EAESBRRBERE

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Council on 4 June 2020.

RAMERERN2020F6 FAR A BIEES I -
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Chairman of Staff and Finance Committee

BRRBE L+ wznes. «Fwst
BERVEKEZESERE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 42 8RR ER

For the year ended 31 March
BE3H31BLFE

(HK$°000) (BETFT) 2020 2019
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
(Deficit)/surplus for the year NEE (BE) Bk (423,290) 87,832
Government subvention BT B R (441,523) (435,523)
Investment loss/(income) WEEE,/ (W) 34,017 (83,216)
Interest on bank deposits RITFRF A (11,194) (10,359)
Finance costs 5 E M 1,275 783
Adjustments for items not involving the TEREeZFHHNIEEMFAE :
movement of cash:
— Depreciation - e 169,070 135,357
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, -HEME - REREMZ (64) 137
plant and equipment (Wz) /B8
— Ineffective portion of cash flow hedges -BHanE e IER M 2,458 735
— Retirement benefit expenses - RIREH S H 11,445 15,776
Decrease in accounts receivable, deposits FEUWEBRK ~ 5] & RIB RIBR A 99,113 37,583
and prepayments
Decrease in accounts payable, accruals JEATERZN - FERTIEE & (116,748) (83,788)
and other payables H A FE S SRIER
Interest elements on lease liabilities HEBEBENFES D (1,259) =
Net cash outflow from operating activities & & EBHFESHK H (676,700) (334,683)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFEE
Interest on bank deposits RITF T B 11,194 10,359
Acquisition of property, plant and BEWE RERSIM (44,902) (41,548)
equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE - RERBMAEFHKIE 125 25
and equipment
Change in fixed-income and equity securities &€ Y et & & A5 5 2 £ 8) (765) (13,911)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits held by fund RERERSEEEERNRESFER (10,279) 10,118
managers for investments (g m) @

HERH (44,627) (34,957)

(721,327) (369,640)

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Net cash outflow before financing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Government subvention BRI # 3% 441,523 435,523
Repayment of bank borrowings (Note 20) BRIFETE (MIFE20) (18,000) (72,000)
Interest paid B F B (16) (783)
Principal elements on lease payments HENRH AL E D (30,078) =
Net cash inflow from financing activites BEZEBHFRERA 393429 362,740
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BRERBESEEYHFRD (327,898) (6,900)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNReEREREEY 774,477 781,377
of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of theyear FAREERREEEY 446,579 774,477
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents: RekReZFBYNEFINT
Cash and bank balances Re MRITEF 461,939 779,558
Less: Deposits held by fund managers for B I EKEFEIERERN (15,360) (5,081)
investments HEFH
446,579 774,477
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds & 8 B £ 28 &

For the year ended 31 March
BE3H31BLFE

Notes

(HK$'000) (B TIT) B 5 2020 2019
Total funds at the beginning FHESHE 3,310,768 3,258,833
_oftheyear
(Deficit)/surplus for the year TEE (FEB) B (423,290) 87,832
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/  Hfti2mEWzE(ZH)

(EXPENSE)

ltem that will not be reclassified to N EWEN O BEERANTEMIAR:

income or expenditure:

— Actuarial loss on defined — AEBAERGFEINIBEEE 6(b)(ii), 19 (57,457) (23,490
,,,,,,,,,,,,,, benefit retirement schemes
ltems that may be reclassified e EF D EE

subsequently to income or WA HHIER:
expenditure:
— Realisation of derivative financial — MEEBITAE#ZN 19 2,366 (9,852
instruments
— Fair value loss on derivative — FRUTESRITARNAEEEIRE 19 (2,289) (2,605
financial instruments at year end
Total comprehensive (expense)/ AEERE(ZH) WHEHEE (480,670) 51,885
_income for theyear
Total funds at the end of the year FRESHKE 2,830,098 3,310,768
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)

(b)

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &2 & 5 % B /5 & ¥ 2019/20
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Hong Kong Trade Development Council (“HKTDC”) was incorporated
in 1966 under the Hong Kong Trade Development Council Ordinance
to promote, assist and develop Hong Kong’'s trade. The address of its
registered office is 38/F, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements included the financial statements
of HKTDC and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and under the historical cost convention, except those as
explained in the principal accounting policies as set out below.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain accounting estimates and
assumptions. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

During the year, the Group has assessed the new or revised standards,
amendments and improvements to existing standards (collectively
the “new and revised HKFRSs”) that have come into effect and are
considered relevant to its operations.

The following new and revised HKFRSs have been adopted by the
Group for the financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2019 and is
considered relevant to the Group's operations:

Amendments to HKFRS 9
ERMBREERNFEISR ZEFT

HKFRS 16

EREMBMEERIFE 165

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
BE(BARVBHREREEES) REFE23%
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle
ERMBREERN2015FE2017F BB 2 FEEE

Leases
ME

BEWBHREER

MF5ERRMIsE

(a)

(b)

—REH
EREEZERER U THEBEIAR]) K1966
FREBE(GEBEZIERBEKEAIKIY  BE
Rt - BN ERESE S o A B
FEMILABEBEFBEEIRERESH
AARIE3SHE -

FTESFHHE

mREE
AGAMBRREBARBREMBE R F (A
TERIAEE]) WP HRE -

AEENGEAMBHRRDERRBEG M
REMBEHNBEEVHERELURH - &
RTIXZEBEFABERRBFHBIN - Uiz
EUBMRBRBELXAERERE -

RENEBEVBRSERNEZRNES M
BHREAFTEERSE TEMEEMBRE - It
NEEERECERASESTRRAER
AT E HIE o F = E e H B R AE
MER BRI EELGESMBHRERM
EBEANEE - EMTAWE -

ENBERBREZ2D
RARFER  AREEFEEAZEZE
EBHEEREERNATREERTER
BRI AN RIRA R 2 BOE (A T S8 57 A]
BEMBIMEER]) -

NEBEET 20195418 sk 2 85 A 2 Bt
BREERMA T AL B S EEBHBD
FRI BB REEL

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

8 24 3ot

HEB A MEMRMER ST

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

PR A5 B0 150 75 e 32 89 B E 1

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and HKAS 23
|35 - BEMBRELERE 1R - FE

SR ERIF12E R BB R ERFE23R 2 EF]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b)
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (Cont’d)

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS 16, the
adoption of the above new and revised HKFRSs has no material impact
on the Group's result. The nature and the impact of HKFRS 16 are
described below:

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases —
Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, except for certain recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting
under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors
continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using
similar principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore, HKFRS 16 did not have any
significant impact on leases where the Group is the lessor.

The Group adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective method
of adoption with the date of initial application of 1 April 2019. Under
this method, the comparative information as at 31 March 2019 and for
the year ended 31 March 2019 was not restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS 17 and related interpretations.

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset and the right to direct the use
of the identified asset. The Group elected to use the transition practical
expedient allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 at the date of initial application. Contracts that were not identified
as leases under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied
only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 April 2019.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (Cont'd)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land, properties

and other assets. As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as
either finance leases or operating leases based on the assessment of
whether the lease transferred substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the Group applies a
single approach to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for all leases, except for an elective exemption for leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less ("short-term leases") (elected by class of
underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses under operating
leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term commencing from 1
April 2019, the Group recognises depreciation of the right-of-use assets
and interest accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities (as interest on
lease liabilities).

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 April 2019 were recognised based on the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate at 1 April 2019 and included in lease liabilities. The
right-of-use assets were measured at the amount of the lease liabilities,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to the lease recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position immediately before 1 April 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on HKAS 36 on
that date. The Group elected to present the right-of-use assets separately
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients when
applying HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019:

—  Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases with a lease
term that ends within 12 months from the date of initial application

— Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract
contains options to extend/terminate the lease

— Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics when measuring the lease liabilities
at 1 April 2019
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (Cont’d) (b)
As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases (Cont’d)

Financial impact at 1 April 2019

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 was

2. FEEFEE(H)

(%)

R2019F4 81 BB &

BN BRREEZ2D (F)
IERAMA—FEH DB BEREHENHE

R2019F4 R HIRMNBBHBERELELNE

as follows: 165REEMFENT ¢

(HK$'000) (B FT)

Assets BE

Increase in right-of-use assets FREEEE M 285,390
Decrease in land use rights =t {5 FA A R A (44,763)
Decrease in property, plant and equipment Mz RERBMED (192,799)
Increase in total assets @& EE N 47,828
Liabilities =L

Increase in lease liabilities and total liabilities HEBEBERESFIGM 47,828

The lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 reconciled to the operating lease

commitments as at 31 March 2019 are as follows:

BE2019F3 A3 HM K EHEREEY S

20194 1EHMHEABENHERMAT ¢

(HK$'000) (B¥TT)
Operating lease commitments as at R2019F3A31H MK EHRERIE 50,273
31 March 2019
Add: Payments for optional extension periods not i A2019F3A31 B R BERA B BT R AR 5,639
recognised as at 31 March 2019
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases A S HITH S e AR EIRA 202043 831 B8 2 (6,607)
and other leases with a remaining lease B4R LF & H th 78 & 58 B8 A 3
term ended on or before 31 March 2020
49,305
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as 201954 A1 B 8y N4 TR E 8 & A X 1.94%
at 1 April 2019
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 MR2019F4R1HNHEEEE 47,828

New HKFRSs which are not yet Effective

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the account year ended 31

March 2020, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

BB R EERE3I% 2 EE]

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

BEVBRELERFER BB ERZE3958 K
BAVBEHRELERETRZIERT

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

BEASTENB IR REL ST ERESR ZI1E85]

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

92

() HMREMRHFIEBHBREER
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Definition of a Business'
XBHER
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

BB R

Definition of Material’
FEEENESE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 &

(o)

(d)

(e)

(f)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

New HKFRSs which are not yet Effective (Cont’d)

The Group is in the progress of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, the
Group considers that these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group's result of operations and financial
position.

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses
on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Accounting
policies of the subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Income generated from exhibitions and missions is recognised over time
when the relevant exhibition or mission is held or services are rendered.
Income generated from trade publications (product magazines and
online marketplace) and other operational income is recognised at the
point in time when the relevant trade publication is published and the
control of legal title is transferred to customers. Income generated from
Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre (the “HKCEC") operation
is recognised over time when services are rendered.

Income from Other Source

Government subvention is recognised in the specific fiscal year as
approved by the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
“HKSAR Government”).
income is set out in note 2(r). Interest on bank deposits is recognised on

Region (the The recognition of investment

a time proportion basis using the effective interest method.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Foreign Currencies Translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is HKTDC's functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed in the Consolidated Income and
Expenditure Account during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 &

()

()

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates sufficient to write
off their cost over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis at
the following annual rates:

Office buildings and staff quarters 2%

Furniture, equipment and fittings 20% to 33-1/3%

Motor vehicles 25%

Leasehold improvements Over the unexpired lease periods

HKCEC Atrium Link Extension Over the unexpired operating

periods

Over the number of years ranging
from two to eight for which the

Operating assets and
exhibition stand systems
assets are expected to be used

No depreciation is provided for freehold land.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted,
if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period. Where the carrying
amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it
is written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount and are dealt with in the Consolidated Income and
Expenditure Account.

Land Use Rights (applicable before 1 April 2019)

Land use rights represent operating lease prepayment for land less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
operating lease prepayment for land over the remaining lease term.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows or
cash-generating units. Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, time deposits held with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into cash.

Borrowings and Borrowing Costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the Consolidated Income and
Expenditure Account over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Loan interest and other borrowing costs are charged to the Consolidated
Income and Expenditure Account except for those interest costs which
are capitalised as part of the cost of construction of a qualifying asset
during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale.

Income Tax

HKTDC is exempted under Section 87 of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Ordinance from all taxes payable under the Ordinance.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(o) Employee Benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Defined Benefit Retirement Schemes

The Group operates a defined benefit retirement scheme in Hong
Kong which provides retirement benefits linked to final salaries
for its employees who have been members of the scheme before
1 December 2000. The assets of the scheme are held by a trustee
separately from those of the Group and are invested through an
investment manager. The Group also participates in a defined
benefit retirement scheme in overseas. The net asset or net liability
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
in respect of defined benefit retirement schemes is the excess or
shortfall in fair value of scheme assets over the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using market
yield of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of the Group’s defined
benefit obligation. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by independent qualified actuaries using the projected
unit credit method. Past service costs are recognised immediately
in the Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account. Actuarial
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in Other
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise.

Defined Contribution Retirement Schemes

The Group participates in a defined contribution retirement scheme
for employees who have joined the Group's services since 1
December 2000 in compliance with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance. The Group’s contributions to the Mandatory Provident
Fund are expensed as incurred. For certain overseas employees,
the Group also contributed to respective local defined contribution
retirement schemes.

Employee Leave Entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period. Employee entitlements to sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(p) Leases

(i)

98

Policies under HKFRS 16 applicable from 1 April 2019

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost over their estimated useful lives
on a straight-line basis at the following annual rates:

Land use rights Over the unexpired lease periods

Leasehold lands Over the unexpired lease periods

Properties Over the unexpired lease periods and
optional period

Other assets Over the unexpired lease periods
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 &

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(p) Leases (Cont’d)
(i) Policies under HKFRS 16 applicable from 1 April 2019 (Cont’d)

Group as a lessee (Cont’d)

(a)

Right-of-use assets (Cont'd)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate. The lease payments also include payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are separately presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments
on short-term leases are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &3 &

2.

(a)

(r)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(p) Leases (Cont'd)

(i)

(i)

Policies under HKFRS 16 applicable from 1 April 2019 (Cont'd)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in miscellaneous income in the
Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Policies under HKAS 17 applicable before 1 April 2019

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of the assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases are expensed on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when either a present legal or constructive

obligation, as a result of a past event, exists at the end of the reporting

period and where the amount of the obligation can be reliably

estimated.

Investments and Other Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently

measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive

income (“FVOCI”) and fair value through income and expenditure
("FVIE™).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 &

(r)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Investments and Other Financial Assets (Cont’d)
Initial recognition and measurement (Cont'd)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at FVIE, transaction costs. Accounts receivable that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out in note 2(e).

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through income or expenditure, irrespective of
the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within
a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are held
within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held
within the aforementioned business models are classified and measured
at fair value through income or expenditure.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Investments and Other Financial Assets (Cont’d)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the Consolidated Income and Expenditure
Account when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at FVIE

Financial assets at FVIE are carried in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised
as investment income in the Consolidated Income and Expenditure
Account.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at FVOCI.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at FVIE are
also recognised as investment income in the Consolidated Income and
Expenditure Account when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Derecognition of Financial Assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:

—  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

—  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 &

(s)

(t)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Derecognition of Financial Assets (Cont'd)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs") for
all debt instruments not held at FVIE. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Impairment of Financial Assets (Cont’d)
Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at FVIE, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable, accruals and
other payables, bank borrowings, derivative financial instruments and

lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans
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and borrowings)
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are

subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial Liabilities (Cont’'d)

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward foreign
currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair
value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are
taken directly to the Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account,
except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised
in Other Comprehensive Income and later reclassified to income or
expenditure when the hedged item affects income or expenditure.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the
fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm
commitment; or

cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash
flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction,
or a foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment; or

hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting (Cont’'d)
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (Cont'd)

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument,
the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the
Group will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge
effectiveness requirements (including the analysis of sources of hedge
ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined). A hedging
relationship qualifies for hedge accounting if it meets all of the following
effectiveness requirements:

— There is “an economic relationship” between the hedged item and
the hedging instrument.

The effect of credit risk does not “dominate the value changes”
that result from that economic relationship.

The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that
resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the Group
actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the
Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

Hedges which meet all the qualifying criteria for hedge accounting are
accounted for as follows:

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument
is recognised directly in Other Comprehensive Income in the Hedging
Reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account. The Hedging Reserve
is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging
instrument and the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item.

The amounts accumulated in Other Comprehensive Income are
accounted for, depending on the nature of the underlying hedged
transaction. If the hedged transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial item, the amount accumulated in equity
is removed from the separate component of equity and included in the
initial cost or other carrying amount of the hedged asset or liability.
This is not a reclassification adjustment and will not be recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income for the period. This also applies where
the hedged forecast transaction of a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability subsequently becomes a firm commitment to which fair value
hedge accounting is applied.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting (Cont’'d)
Cash flow hedges (Cont'd)

For any other cash flow hedges, the amount accumulated in Other
Comprehensive Income is reclassified to the Consolidated Income and
Expenditure Account as a reclassification adjustment in the same period
or periods during which the hedged cash flows affect the Consolidated
Income and Expenditure Account.

If cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued, the amount that has
been accumulated in Other Comprehensive Income must remain
in accumulated Other Comprehensive Income if the hedged future
cash flows are still expected to occur. Otherwise, the amount will be
immediately reclassified to the Consolidated Income and Expenditure
Account as a reclassification adjustment. After the discontinuation, once
the hedged cash flow occurs, any amount remaining in accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income is accounted for depending on the nature
of the underlying transaction as described above.

Related Parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if the party has the
ability, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, to
control the Group or exercise significant influence over the Group in
making financial and operating policies, and vice versa. For the purpose
of the consolidated financial statements, transactions between the
Group and the HKSAR Government departments, agencies or HKSAR
Government controlled entities, other than those transactions such as
payment of rent and rates, fees etc., that arise in the normal dealings
between the HKSAR Government and the Group, are considered to be
related party transactions.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &3 &

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(a) Financial Risk Factors

(i)

108

Investment Risk and Credit Risk

The Group adopts a prudent and conservative investment policy
approved by the HKSAR Government. The management regularly
monitors the fair value of the investments and performance of the
portfolios reported by the fund managers on a quarterly basis. The
Group's investment portfolio consists mostly of fixed-income and
equity securities. As at 31 March 2020, the fixed-income securities
portfolio maintained an average credit rating of A- or above as
measured by Standard & Poor’s or equivalent. In addition, the
Group has closely monitored the performance of their investments
in equity securities. The Group’s investment portfolio is also exposed
to certain price risk of equity securities which are diversified
globally. The foreign currency exposures in debt instruments are
managed using financial derivatives.

The table below summarises the impact of change of fair value of
asset classes’ portfolio in which the Group invests on the Group’s
surplus for the year. The analysis is based on the assumption that
the fair value of asset classes have changed as disclosed, with all
other variables held constant and the Group's investment portfolio
moved according to the historical correlation with the fair value of
assets classes.

M5 ERRMIsE

3.
(a)

B R B i B
BB EE

(i)

HERRKEERR

AEEFAERERBREAR SRR
EESRFHE - EEETFHERE
ERNAhBEYAESEERETEER
BEHAEZRE - ASENKREHES
FERETE W= RRAFES - 1R2020
F3A318 B MEFHEENTH
EEHRRBAEZEELBESZTR
EA-SA L BRUEASN  REE T E
PERBRABFLFMNEERR - AEH
KR EAE NG DR D SR E IR
Z RAKAZETREERER &
FHAINERBRASRITEERERE

TERBMARNEEIRERS W EEHER
MARBEEIHAEERNFEZ AR
MR8 WO KEBEMRECEER
AIMAARBEES CRER A EM
BEEFITE AEEREEARE
BEEBHNAABENELEBILEZ

Reasonably Possible Changes in Increase/Decrease
Fair Value over a Month Period on Surplus
RAEEE—EAHRA
SEAREZEE B8R 12 /R 4
HK$'000
BT T
Asset Classes EEER
Fixed-income Securities B F U E A 1.0% 14,100
Equity Securities A% 7N 35 A 4.0% 22,800
Total L] 36,900

The Group only places liquid funds with reputable banks with
sound credit rating. The Group does not expect any losses from
non-performance by the banks. As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s
placed deposits in banks with short-term credit ratings of A-1
or above as measured by Standards & Poor’s or equivalent. The
Group is also exposed to credit risk in relation to trade and other
receivables. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
the carrying amounts of these financial assets. To manage this
risk, the management has monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the management reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each
individual accounts receivable to ensure that adequate impairment
is made for the irrecoverable amounts. The credit risk is considered
minimal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & & B1 #5 R R M5

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(a) Financial Risk Factors (Cont’d)

(i)

Investment Risk and Credit Risk (Cont'd)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum

exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which

is mainly based on past due information unless other information

is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging

classification as at 31 March. The amounts presented are gross

carrying amounts for financial assets.

3.

B35 b E 2 (&)

(a) M#REREE (K
iy BERBREERR(E)
RAEB R F K95 R
TREATREBEAEEEERE &
EERMEERRZEARR (KX
ERBECAPENET KRIFFH
ER A ETBZ KA AN #E
) RMR3ANANFRIK - 25 &

HMATHEEZRmAE -

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &2 & 5 % B /5 & ¥ 2019/20

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 7 5
FEER ZHRBEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Approach Total
(HK$'000) (BEFT) £ E-®& F=H WrE k)
As at 31 March 2020 7M2020%3A31H
Accounts receivable* JFE Ui BR T * - - - 15,347 15,347
Other financial assets included in SARKEER - FTE& K
accounts receivable, deposits and BEAFENEREE
prepayments
— Normal** —EE** 49,909 - - - 49,909
Cash and bank balances Re RRTER
~ Not yet past due — W A B 461,939 - - - 461,939
511,848 - - 15,347 527,195
As at 31 March 2019 7201963 A31H
Accounts receivable* JE W BR 5+ - - - 55,437 55,437
Other financial assets included FAABRER T2k
in accounts receivable, deposits and BN KEMEBEE
prepayments
- Normal** — [EE** 76,970 - - - 76,970
Cash and bank balances Re RRTTER
— Not yet past due —WARBH 779,558 - - - 779,558
856,528 - - 55437 911,965

109



4= A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &3 &

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
(a) Financial Risk Factors (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

110

Investment Risk and Credit Risk (Cont'd)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Cont’d)
* For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is
disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
**  The credit quality of the other financial assets included in accounts
receivable, deposits and prepayments is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating that
the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group carries out promotional activities in overseas countries
and the related expenditure is principally paid in foreign currencies.
Forward foreign currency contracts are entered into to manage the
foreign exchange risk exposure for its foreign currency payments.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group has interest-bearing assets, mainly, time deposits. During
the year, if the interest rate on the time deposits had been 100
basis points per annum higher or lower with all other variables held
constant, interest income would have been HK$4.90 million (2019:
HK$5.70 million) higher or lower.

Liquidity Risk

The Group maintains sufficient cash and liquid assets including
marketable securities to finance its operations and is not exposed to
significant liquidity risk. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

M5 ERRMIsE

3.
(a)
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(iii)

(iv)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &2 & 5 % B /5 & ¥ 2019/20

R B HRRMEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3. BXREKRERE (&)
(a) Financial Risk Factors (Cont'd) (a) BIEMREZE(E)
(iv) Liquidity Risk (Cont'd) (iv) mEYHEREE (8)
The following tables provide the undiscounted cash flows of NTIHEZHBEEHRBEBHER
significant financial liabilities: e
More than More than Total
Within 1 Year but 2 Yearsbut Contractual
1 Year or On Less than Less than Undiscounted
Demand 2 Years 5 Years Cash Flow
=¥ ki
TERH SMER SH2EE REHEH
(HK$'000) (BT EEX D2FE DRSE BEESRE
At 31 March 2019 #2019%3A318
Lease liabilities HEBRE 27,831 15,538 16,271 59,640
Accounts payable, accruals and EMERZ - EEIEE & 451,564 - - 451,564
other payables H e 15 BR 30
Derivative financial instruments TEemI A
- Outflow - XM 307,047 - - 307,047
- Inflow - [ (302,294) - - (302,294)
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3H31H
Accounts payable, accruals and FERTBRTN - FESTIEE M 569,405 - - 569,405
other payables H A e AT ER X
Bank borrowings RITER 18,000 - - 18,000
Derivative financial instruments TESMITA
- Outflow - ¥ 148,774 - - 148,774
~ Inflow - e (146,451) - - (146,451)
(b) Capital Management (b) BEXRER

The Group’s capital consists of the General Fund, Reserve Fund,

Exhibition Contracting Services Fund and Other Specific Funds, which are

set up for various designated purposes as described in notes 16 to 19. It

is the Group’s objective to maintain sufficient Reserve Fund to safeguard

the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to support its

current and future capital and operating expenditure requirements.

In order to maintain the capital structure, the Group obtains funding

arrangement through government subvention agreed between HKTDC
and the HKSAR Government as set out in note 5(a).

AEEEABRERES FHES R
EARERFEESREMEEESR  EXT
ZEBEEREEFINHEI6E19A
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RTHRBERER AEEESAREE

7 BT B0 48 B SRR 5 TE 2 BRAT B 5K - an Y
wE5(a)Pr#k

m



4= A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &3 &

()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

Fair Value Estimation

Financial instruments that are measured at fair value in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position required disclosure of fair value
measurements by level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:

—  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1).

— Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices)
or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that were
measured at fair value:

M5 ERRMIsE

(o)

B % L B E I (4R

DN ABEEMF
REEHBHRRAREARBEFAEN SR
TE BRERZRUATIHOAEBETFERSE
AR EE R A BERE

- MHREBEXEBEEEBRTHHORE CR
RHE) (&R -

- BRTITE-—RHNFEENREIN  ZE
EMRBEUBERFINEMAR - T
im e B & (Al ER) sfE & (BUR
BER) (EZ&H) -

- EBEXABEBENMEVEREBEITERRE
BTSSR (Bl BR BRI E)
(BE=@7) -

TRETAKEZAABEFENEEM
BfE:

Level 1 Level 2 Total
(HK$'000) (B®FT) E—# 5 EZRER HaE
At 31 March 2020 M2020%E3H31H
Assets BE
Fixed-income and equity securities & 7E Wz K AR AN 78 5 2,111,313 8,184 2,119,497
Liabilities =R
Derivative financial instruments TESE T A - 4,747 4,747
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3H31H
Assets BE
Fixed-income and equity securities (& & U 25 J BR AN 3 5 2,146,821 5928 2,152,749
Liabilities =K
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmMITA = 2,366 2,366
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4= A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 &

(o)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

Fair Value Estimation (Cont’'d)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. A market
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1. Instruments of the
Group included in Level 1 are fixed-income and equity securities.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques authorise the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine
the fair value of an instrument are observable, the instrument is included
in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

—  Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

—  The fair value of forward foreign currency contracts is determined
using forward exchange rates at the end of the reporting period,

with the resulting value discounted back to present value.

—  Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used
to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

MF5ERRMIsE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &3 &

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The management makes estimates based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

HKTDC regularly reviews whether there are any indications of impairment
of property, plant and equipment. If impairment indicators exist, HKTDC
will test whether the carrying amount of an asset is higher than its
recoverable amount which is the greater of its net selling price and its
value in use in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2(k).

In determining the value in use, management assesses the present value
of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing
use of the asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
Estimates and judgements are applied in determining these future cash
flows and the discount rate.

Defined Benefit Retirement Scheme Liabilities

The present value of the defined benefit obligation depends on a number
of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the gains or losses
for defined benefit retirement schemes include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of defined
benefit obligation. The Group determines the appropriate discount rate
at the end of each year, which should be used to determine the present
value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle
the defined benefit obligation.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considers the
market yield of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in
the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of the Group’s defined benefit
obligation.

Other key assumptions for defined benefit obligation are based in part

on current market conditions. Additional information is disclosed in note
6(b).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & & B1 #5 R R M5

(a)

(b)

INCOME 5. WA
Government Subvention (a) BUFER
The government subvention from the HKSAR Government to HKTDC for B E2020F3A31R IEFE - BEBF R
the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to HK$441.52 million (2019: B 1R 89 BT B R R 8 ¥4184,1528 7T
HK$435.52 million). Of the total appropriation of HK$441.52 million, (20194 : 4183,5528 1) - E B KB 5B
HK$20.65 million (2019: HK$435.52 million, HK$18.38 million) was used #AE4,1528 7T (20194 : A #E4(E3,5528
to fund trade-related activities organised by The Hong Kong Shippers’ JC) R PE#62,0658 7T (20194F « 151,838
Council, the HongKong Japan Business Co-operation Committee and the ST)ARENEBENEAZER - BRAK
governmental relations service, and the balance of HK$420.87 million BEeEZE g RBTHAERBMEHES
(2019: HK$417.14 million) was applied to fund the activities directly ZHBHEEHLE - REE M K482,087
under the Group. &It (20194 : B 4aE1,7148 ) AR
REEETHES o
Income Generated from Operational Activities (b) REEEIWA
(HK$’'000) (BE®TIT) 2020 2019
Revenue from contracts with customers: BPE K W
Exhibitions and missions EoREGNRGHEE 1,485,408 2,002,179
Product magazines and online marketplace EmdEakBLLRETS 123,176 150,204
HKCEC operation EREGZREPLEE 142,885 187,971
Other operational income H b a8 & A 46,878 61,336
1,798,347 2,401,690
Timing of income recognition T R WA Y s )
At a point in time L S 170,054 211,540
Over time & BF P HE RS 1,628,293 2,190,150
Total revenue from contracts REAH 2B K= 1,798,347 2,401,690
with customers
Revenue recognised in current reporting REJTAEHEE
period that was included in contract NI AN E=R A g e
liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:
Exhibitions and missions BoREe M 445,828 485,506
Product magazines and online marketplace Emifaw i ERET S 49,844 60,180
Other operational income H A48 & A 1,924 1,419
Total revenue from contracts with customers BTFE & 42 B %5 497,596 547,105
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &3 &

(a)

STAFF COSTS

The total amount of staff costs (including directors’ pay and allowances)

M5 ERRMIsE

6.

B8 A
BERARE (BRBBBE 2 FH MR %

comprises: 8h) B 15 :

(HK$’'000) (B¥TT) 2020 2019

Staff salaries and discretionary 1B B %< KIS & 2% 35 25 a0 5 B 618,723 596,997
performance pay

Accommodation and other allowances, F18 & E A )ER R{EBMEEZ T 156,353 144,605
and staff-related expenses

Retirement benefit expenses RIKEF S H 48,113 47,392

823,189 788,994
Directors’ Pay and Allowances (a) ABAME ZHMRIZ
The directors are key management of the Group and include the RERBEDNAEEFZEEAE 81

Executive Director, Deputy Executive Directors and Assistant Executive
Directors. Their total salaries and allowances for the year were as

BE O BB RBIB A HAREEEFH
T ROERIT

follows:
2020 2019
Executive Other
Director Directors Total Total
Hiy
(HK$'000) (BEFIT) ER ABREE @ zE k)
Salaries and discretionary Fae kBB EERR 5,735 16,163 21,898 20,650
performance pay B 37
Accommodation and other E78 R E Ab)EAL 1,481 4,402 5,883 5,406
allowances, retirement benefit and  E{RIEF R IES
staff-related expenses S
7,216 20,565 27,781 26,056

The salaries and discretionary performance pay for all directors of the
Group as at the end of the reporting period fell within the following

RELR AEBRAASABENT 2
KBBRREERNFMEEATHER

ranges:
2020 2019

No. of No. of

Directors Directors

(HK$) (BE) BE A" BB AH
2,000,001 to 2,500,000 2,000,001%2,500,000 - 1
2,500,001 to 3,000,000 2,500,001% 3,000,000 4 2
3,500,001 to 4,000,000 3,500,001%4,000,000 - 2
4,000,001 to 4,500,000 4,000,001%4,500,000 1 =
5,000,001 to 5,500,000 5,000,001%5,500,000 - 1
5,500,001 to 6,000,000 5,500,001%6,000,000 1 =
6 6

During the year, the Council Chairman and Council members of HKTDC
did not receive any remuneration for their services rendered to HKTDC

(2019: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 &

(b)

STAFF COSTS (Cont’d)

Retirement Benefit Scheme — Defined Benefit Retirement Schemes
HKTDC has defined benefit retirement schemes in Hong Kong and
in overseas (collectively the “Schemes”). The major defined benefit
retirement scheme is in Hong Kong (the “HK Scheme”), which represents
96% of the total scheme assets of HKTDC as at 31 March 2020.

The HK Scheme is a defined benefit scheme that provides lump sum
benefits based on a factor of a member’s final salary and years of service
upon the member’s retirement, death, disability or leaving service. The
HK Scheme has been closed to new employees since 1 December 2000.

The HK Scheme was established under a trust arrangement. It is
registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance of
Hong Kong (“ORSQO"”), and has been granted with MPF Exemption by
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority. HKTDC is the sole
employer participating in the HK Scheme.

In accordance with relevant clauses of the trust deed of the HK Scheme,
the Council has an unconditional right to the surplus of the HK Scheme.
As a result, the asset ceiling under paragraph 64 and 65 of HKAS 19 and
the minimum funding requirements of HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 14 do
not apply to the HK Scheme.

The HK Scheme is administered by HSBC Institutional Trust Services
(Asia) Limited who acts as the trustee to the HK Scheme. The key
responsibilities of the trustee are to ensure that the HK Scheme is
administered in accordance with the trust deed and rules and to act on
behalf of all members impartially, prudently and in good faith.

The HK Scheme is mainly exposed to investment risk and interest rate
risk. The investment manager of the HK Scheme has been assigned
an investment mandate with the targeted asset allocation to achieve

MF5ERRMIsE

6.
(b)
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SBEBEUKENGEFERRBEER
AT E ETE DR — R R R & R E AR AT
gl - BB EIE M20005F12 A1 A= L5
XHKE o

BREFERNEEDAKL  AEREE
BB R BIRDID) M - BESHR S
HRABEFHEEERR THRESHR R - A
BRERENE -—2EET -

RIEBBTECEERONBERER  NB
HRBBFEINRHBRE ERGERANETR -
E it - BB 2 E R 1957 55645 & 565
BIEEMEE FREED (RBRHEREZ
BZEg)RER 4R RENFEEREK
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EBTETEMYERERR XA R R
BRI ECEERR— IﬁaTﬁﬁE
DEERNEEREFREAEZ Tk -

a diversified portfolio. The Group’s management monitors the overall AREBEEEESETRAERHEINELBRER
position of the HK Scheme on a quarterly basis. Since the HK Scheme is ETER BRABFEERH —ZE5E
a final salary lump sum scheme, its exposure to longevity risk is limited. BEFNE  ARAZRSER ﬁﬁﬁ
Details of the Schemes are as follows: ZEGENFBEOT
(i) Retirement benefit expenses recognised in the Consolidated Income () EHFERZTRABERARKEFEZE
and Expenditure Account were as follows: (I N
(HK$'000) (B¥TT) 2020 2019
Current service cost KNER A& A 27,512 28,457
Net interest cost FA B E A 1,619 1,363
Administrative expenses 1THE R 1,371 1,763
30,502 31,583
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6. STAFF COSTS (Cont'd)

(b) Retirement Benefit Scheme — Defined Benefit Retirement Schemes

(Cont'd)

(i)

(iii)

18

Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit retirement schemes

6. EERZAF (H)

recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

were as follows:

(ii)

(b) 3R UKEFI T8-S E 8RR AR5t 8 (8

EiRE2EKRERANER/AERMN
RIRFEINBE RS (BB MT :

(HK$’ 000) (BE¥T L) 2020 2019

Return on scheme assets, excluding FFEIEEMER  TEEBE (23,932) (2,756)
amounts included in interest income R BUA P H & 58

Actuarial loss arising from experience “Ee A S| MM BEEE (1,074) (3,055)
adjustment

Actuarial loss arising from change in B 75 B iR = B) 5| LAY (32,418) (17,712)
financial assumptions BHEEE

Actuarial (loss)/gain arising from A B BR&RE 85| B (33) 33
change in demographic assumptions BE(E B/ W=

(57,457) (23,490)

Net scheme liabilities recognised in the Consolidated Statement

of Financial Position and represented by the Retirement Benefit

Scheme Reserve were as follows:

(iii)

AR A B IR R A RE R I R R R
KEF T B RmAOFTEIFRENT -

(HK$" 000) (BEBTIT) 2020 2019

Fair value of scheme assets as FSFEIEERERNAREBE 638,304 684,202
at the end of the year

Present value of defined benefit AERAMBEERERNIRE (832,092) (809,088)
obligation as at the end of the year

Net scheme liabilities FrEFAE (193,788) (124,886)

Movement in the fair value of scheme assets of the year was as

(v) HEEEREANAABESED

follows: AR

(HK$'000) (B¥TIT) 2020 2019

At the beginning of the year =) 684,202 749,545

Exchange differences PE 5 =58 (1,430) (1,757)

Interest income on scheme assets FrEIBEEMF B U A 9,522 13,168

Return on scheme assets, excluding FrEIEEMER  TE5E 8 (23,932) (2,756)
amounts included in interest income R B U AR & %8

Employer contributions B EH R 19,033 15,774

Employee contributions & B 3K 6,435 6,821

Actual benefits paid B X HEREF (54,155) (94,830)

Administrative expenses paid from SFEEEEIMNITEHRER (1,371) (1,763)
scheme assets

At the end of the year FR 638,304 684,202
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 &

(Cont'd)

(v)

MF5ERRMIsE

6. STAFF COSTS (Cont'd) 6. EERAE(E)

(b) Retirement Benefit Scheme — Defined Benefit Retirement Schemes (b) EARBAE-FERAEMNK B (H)
Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation of the (v) BNEERERANBREZEHNT :
year was as follows:

(HK$'000) (BT IT) 2020 2019

At the beginning of the year F 1) 809,088 835,165

Exchange differences b 5 =& (1,454) (1,790)

Current service cost NEARR 75 & A 27,512 28,457

Interest cost MEEA 11,141 14,531

Employee contributions EEHK 6,435 6,821

Actuarial loss arising from experience KRR S| B s E 18 1,074 3,055
adjustment

Actuarial loss arising from change R REELE S| B BEEEE 32,418 17,712
in financial assumptions

Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from AOBEREFH S BOBEE 33 (33)
change in demographic assumptions B ()

Actual benefits paid B X HERER (54,155) (94,830)

At the end of the year FR 832,092 809,088

Further information of the HK Scheme is disclosed below:

(vi) The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31 March were as

follows:

HRAtEMEEEREENT

(vi)y M3A3MBEMRANEZRBREBRZLT

2020 2019
Discount rate B IH =& 0.6% 1.4%
Expected rate of future salary increase 2R 2R 3 B 7B HR 4 R R 4.0% 4.0%

The sensitivity analysis of the present value of defined benefit
obligation to changes in actuarial assumptions used as at 31 March
2020 were as follows:

MR2020F3B31H AT IR AWM BERR
EHHATERNECEENRZED
R :

Increase/(Decrease) in Present Value
of Defined Benefit Obligation

REBANETREEM CRD)
Change in Increase in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption Assumption
BRHE2E BREMN BRRED
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT
Discount rate B IR = 0.25% (10,380) 10,598
Expected rate of future salary increase N R 5 B TR R R R 0.25% 7,233 (7,134)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. The
methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis did not change compared to the previous period.

LABBEA LRI ARK LR
B MAARBRRRBTE -
FELE  REEEH m#%%mm
4 e R R A 3
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(b)

(9

STAFF COSTS (Cont'd)
Retirement Benefit Scheme — Defined Benefit Retirement Schemes
(Cont'd)

(vii)

The HK Scheme assets were composed of:

B S A (&)
3R K18 A 5 8-SR E 48 R ARG B ()

(vii) BEBFENEEARNT

2020 2019

Equity securities & A< 3% 25 37.2% 41.8%
Fixed-income securities EE W FEH 59.7% 58.2%
Cash and other net assets BekEMFEEE 3.1% 0.0%
100.0% 100.0%

(viii) There are no assets of the HK Scheme that were invested in the

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

Group’s own financial instruments or properties as at 31 March
2020.

Currently, the HK Scheme has a benchmark asset allocation of
40% in equities and 60% in bonds. The long term strategic
asset allocations of the HK Scheme are set and reviewed from
time to time by the Group taking into account the HK Scheme’s
membership, liability profile, liquidity requirements, and the risk
appetite of the Group.

The expected Group’s contributions to the HK Scheme for the
following year are HK$15.43 million.

The costs of benefits are jointly funded by the Group and the
members. Members’ contributions are based on a fixed percentage
of basic salary and discretionary performance pay as stipulated
by the rules of the HK Scheme. These Group’s contributions
are determined with reference to the funding valuation carried
out by the HK Scheme’s actuary in accordance with the ORSO
requirements. The last funding valuation of the HK Scheme was
carried out as at 31 December 2017.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as
at 31 March 2020 is 5.2 years (2019: 5.7 years).

(xiii) The expected maturity analysis of the benefit payments from the HK

Scheme based on the adopted actuarial assumptions:

(viii) 7220203 H31H @ Fd st 2 W &EE

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

ERERAKEMKENESR T AR
UES

BERlr BRAENEEEESTR A
40% % ZEM60%EFH - AEE = & 2
EBFEMKEER  AERBR &
FBESCERRAEBARARIRLGT -
HEBFENRHRBUEEEDBE
TEF AR T ©

AEBBHTFERB B EHKBE
#5438 7T °

BB EIMREF A KA Z B A& E
REHERHK KEHRARKERS
STEIMERIRE  NEAFEEHE
BRRFAEROFTWNOEEE SLLEE -
AEBENERARKEBERESTENEBE
B iZ R B BB ERIRETEGOD WE
KETETHE S HBEMARE - BB
Sl&iE— RN ESHERENR2017F
128318 #17 °

(xii) 7A2020%3A31H R EBRFE T

Pn#E 15 F 8 A5.24 (20194 : 5.7
&) o

(i) REFEFFEARAOBERRMIEA

sHEIRE A S R BB D AT

(HK$'000) (B¥TIT) 2020
Within one year —F AR 32,331
More than one year but less than two years ZR—FELRME 113,810
More than two years but less than five years ZRMEELRESE 305,446
Over five years AFEUE 573,898

Retirement Benefit Scheme — Defined Contribution Retirement Schemes
During the year, the Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes amounted to HK$17.61 million (2019: HK$15.81
million).
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. WX BERSBIM
Furniture Operating
HKCEC land,  Equipment, Assets and
Atrium Office  Fitting and Exhibition
Link  Buildings and Leasehold Motor Stand
Extension Staff Quarters Improvements Vehicles Systems Total
EEeHE i BERE fELE
RERL  BEEBT RERES KRE
(HK$'000) (B%FT) mERE  RBEER NELE RE Bu%s #g
201920
Cost RE
At 31 March 2019 (as originally presented) 201934318 (RE25) 1,481,419 778,808 552,248 3,718 154,835 2,971,028
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RNERHREER - (321,014) - - - (321,014)
F16%NTE
At 1 April 2019 (as restated) R201954R1A (£ E7) 1,481,419 457,794 552,248 3718 154,835 2,650,014
Additions EE - - 33,774 - 11,128 44,902
Disposals & - - (12,260) - (16,438) (28,698)
At 31 March 2020 #2020%3A318 1,481,419 457,794 573,762 3,718 149,525 2,666,218
Accumulated Depreciation 2HE
At 31 March 2019 (as originally presented) R2019F3A31R (REE5) 761,837 286,242 468,179 2,181 139,333 1,657,772
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RERHREER - (128,215) - - - (128,215)
F16RHTE
At 1 April 2019 (as restated) 1201954418 (£E51) 761,837 158,027 468,179 2,181 139,333 1,529,557
Depreciation ik 74,346 7,770 40,079 621 9,386 132,202
Depreciation written back on disposals HERNTERR - - (12,250) - (16,387) (28,637)
At 31 March 2020 12020534318 836,183 165,797 496,008 2,802 132,332 1,633,122
Net Book Value FEFE
At 31 March 2020 #2020%3A31R 645,236 291,997 71,754 916 17,193 1,033,096
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7.

(a)

(b)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

7. WME- - RERSEME)

Furniture Operating
HKCEC Land, Equipment, Assets and
Atrium Office Fitting and Exhibition
Link  Buildings and Leasehold Motor Stand
Extension  Staff Quarters  Improvements Vehicles Systems Total
BheE T KERE BedE
RERL  HEREBF  REREE REE
(HK$'000) (B%TT) mEER  RBEES NEXE HE B%E %
2018/19
At 1 April 2018 R2018F4A1H 1,481,419 778,808 534,304 4,302 156,906 2,955,739
Additions BE - - 36,39 - 5,152 41,548
Disposals & - - (18,452) (584) (7.023) (26,259)
At 31 March 2019 #2019%3A31H 1,481,419 778,808 552,248 3,718 154,835 2,971,028
Accumulated Depreciation ZHIE
At 1 April 2018 R2018E4A18 687,490 22,111 449,431 2,116 138,801 1,549,949
Depreciation e 74,347 14,131 37,073 649 7,720 133,920
Depreciation written back on disposals HERNTEDR = = (18,325) (584) (7,188) (26,097)
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A318 761,837 286,242 468,179 2,181 139,333 1,657,772
Net Book Value ERZE
At 31 March 2019 R2019%63A31R 719,582 492,566 84,069 1,537 15,502 1,313,256
LEASES 8. MHE

Land Use Rights (before 1 April 2019)

The Group’s interests in land use rights in Hong Kong and outside Hong
Kong represent prepaid operating lease payments. Their net book values

(a) L HufEFA#E (A2019548 18 LLAT)
REBEREEKREE AN R &) £ i1 E A
BESDEBRNKEHENRE - HREF

are analysed as follows: BT
(HK$'000) (B TIT)
As at 1 April 2018 R2018F4 8 1H 46,200
Amortisation B 5 (1,437)
As at 31 March 2019 201943 A31H 44,763
Right-Of-Use Assets (b) ERAEEE
Land Use Leasehold

Right Lands Properties Others Total
(HK$'000) (BB T L) L i fE FARE HELH# S H At HE
As at 1 April 2019 7201954818 44,763 192,799 47,828 - 285,390
Additions ®E - - 36,731 4,575 41,306
Depreciation e (1,436) (6,360) (27,456) (1,616) (36,868)
At 31 March 2020 7202083 A31H 43,327 186,439 57,103 2,959 289,828
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(b)

(o)

LEASES (Cont'd) 8. WM& (&)

Right-Of-Use Assets (Cont’d) (b) FEREEE(E)

During the year, depreciation of right-of-use assets amounted to RAFEERN  GTAHAZEER] - [EEK
HK$24.95 million, HK$6.32 million and HK$5.60 million were included RIM[EMERES  NEREEENTE
in “Office Expenses”, “Staff Costs” and “Other Promotional Activities” D R & 7S #2 4958 Tt B #6328 T M B
respectively. BE5608 T ©

Lease Liabilities (c0 HEEE

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the HEABERmENFANEFHNT

year are as follows:

(HK$'000) (GE®TT)

As at 1 April 2019 M2019F4H1H 47,828
New leases S 41,306
Accretion of interest recognised during the year F N RERH ) B 38 i1 1,259
Payments (NEN (31,337)
As at 31 March 2020 R2020F3 A31H 59,056
Analysed into: DA

Current portion BNEAES 75 28,660
Non-current portion FEBNEREL 30,396
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 3(a)(iv). HESERRE R DHTENT3@) (V)P HEKEE -

The amounts recognised in income and expenditure in relation to leases R REAEFENSENAT ¢

are as follows:

(HK$'000) (B TT) 2020

Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 1,259

Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 36,868

Expenses relating to short-term leases and other leases  # T~ & #9522020F3 A31 H sk Z AT & R HY 6,607
with remaining lease term ended on or before 31 CHHERHMESHZ (BREEREXA

March 2020 (included in staff costs, office expenses WAEERAREMEREE )
and other promotional activities)

Total amount recognised in income and expenditure R R ) 45 44,734
The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows relating to HER@RHREREMKFABNEE
leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in notes 20(c) and B ) R 2R ER € 0 93 Bl 4 BT 5E20(c)F121(c)
21(c) respectively. KRR o
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10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B4 75 #R &R bl 5
SUBSIDIARIES 9. KMIEAF
Details of the wholly owned subsidiaries as at 31 March 2020 are as 7202043 A31H + 2 EWB A AMFFIBFN
follows: N
Issued
Ordinary Interest
Share Capital/ Held
Place of Incorporation Registered Directly/
Name and Operations Capital Indirectly  Principal Activities
ERTEER HE/EE
=L o AR 3 K% 0B it B BRA &R BFEERZ XEXR
HK$
B
HKTDC (Japan) Limited Hong Kong 22,800,000 100%  Under voluntary
Directly liquidation®
BB BEERE EABRERER
HKTDC Limited Hong Kong 1 100%  Trade promotion
Directly
BEBERERAERRAA BB BHEFE ES5HEE
Guangzhou Gang Mao Consultancy and The People’s Republic 3,460,000 100%  Consultancy and
Management Company Limited*" of China Indirectly business support
BMEEHAERERLA REARAME RERFAE HARBEXE
HKTDC Design Gallery (Guangdong) The People’s Republic 47,987,580 100%  Wholesale and retail
Trading Company Limited*" of China Indirectly
BRBAR(BER)BEERAA REARAME RERE HERTE
*  Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the * WIEAR BB R KB IR L H b K
Ernst & Young global network BRREZ
" Registered as a Wholly Foreign-Owned Enterprise under PRC law BEPBEEEEMAIEEE RS
5 Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, voluntary dissolution # R EHRE - B R AMN2020F4H9R
completed on 9 April 2020. TR ©
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 10. BWERR A& RBEMRE
(HK$'000) (BETIT) 2020 2019
Accounts receivable JE W AR 5K 15,347 55,437
Deposits and prepayments SN B 68,372 116,668
Other receivables o {th jE U BR X 49,863 60,590
133,582 232,695

As at 31 March 2020, accounts receivable of HK$14.45 million (2019:
HK$51.98 million) and HK$0.56 million (2019: HK$3.06 million) was

within credit periods and overdue up to 3 months respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 &

10. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont'd)

11.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating). The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

The expected credit loss rate for the Group’s accounts receivable is
minimal for all the above bands of accounts receivable.

The financial assets included in deposits and other receivables relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and past
due amounts. As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the loss allowance was
assessed to be minimal.

The carrying amounts of accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments,
which approximate their fair values, were denominated in the following

MF5ERRMIsE

10.

W AR ~ &] & R AR (&)

RERER  ERBEHEREETREDT -
Nt BERHEEBRR - BEXTHIRETR
EPMARzBUEBEERN (MREPEER
APAREI D) 2 BHI B BEE - LAt E RIRAR
KNESER EEREEEARNRSE A
ESEEBESEMN BAIAREREL
BARRTER 2 GIB R AT SEER]

B LA ERERREAR  AEEZ
EUMEREREEBRREK -

AR REMERRRAN SR E E HiT
HA NI 4 R R0 6% Rk W A 380 R SR O FE UK
HA R - R20208%201943A31H » EiEE
BT AEM

YRR T RBNRBENREESRER
AR EEESE  UTHEEREL :

currencies:
(HK$'000) (BT 2020 2019
Hong Kong dollars S 109,204 210,856
Euro & T 7,916 1,422
United States dollars eSS 1,253 3,331
Other currencies Hih 5k 15,209 17,086
133,582 232,695
FIXED-INCOME AND EQUITY SECURITIES 11. BEWZEBRAES
(HK$'000) (BEBFIT) 2020 2019
Fixed-income securities & 7E W 25 75 5 1,529,261 1,589,667
Equity securities % 7N 75 25 582,052 557,154
Financial derivatives S EOTEE & 8,184 5,982
2,119,497 2,152,749

The fixed-income and equity securities are designated and accounted for
as financial assets at fair value through income or expenditure, mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. Changes
in fair value of fixed-income and equity securities are recorded in
“Investment (loss)/income” in the Consolidated Income and Expenditure
Account.

BERERBRAESREERRIABES
BRARTHEENMBEE  TBZNUE
BRETLREM ERABEZEHELR
BRERINRBMRE (BR) W] -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &3 &

M5 ERRMIsE

12. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS PTEEMI A
(HK$’'000) CE¥TT) 2020 2019
Current Liabilities as per Consolidated GEMBERRRAZRBER
Statement of Financial Position
Forward foreign currency contracts RERINES A 4,747 2,366

When forward foreign currency contracts are used to hedge forecast
transactions, the Group designates only the change in fair value of
the forward foreign currency contracts related to the spot component
as the hedging instrument. Gains or losses relating to the effective
portion of the change in the spot component of the forward foreign
currency contracts are recognised in the Hedging Reserve within equity.
The change in the forward element of the contracts that relate to the
hedged item (“aligned forward element”) is recognised within Other
Comprehensive Income.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward foreign
currency contracts as at 31 March 2020 amounted to US$39.37 million
(equivalent to HK$307.05 million) (2019: US$19.07 million (equivalent
to HK$148.77 million)). The Group applies a hedge ratio of 1:1 and
determines the existence of an economic relationship between the
forward foreign currency contracts and the highly probable forecast
transactions based on their currency types, currency amounts and the
timing of their respective cash flows. The change in fair value of the
forward foreign currency contracts related to the spot component as
the hedging instrument to hedge foreign currency payment will mature
within one year.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the effective portion of changes in
the fair value of the cash flow hedges was recognised in the Hedging
Reserve in equity (note 19) and transferred to the Consolidated Income
and Expenditure Account when the hedged items affected income and
expenditure. The ineffective portion amounted to a loss of HK$2.46
million (2019: a loss of HK$0.74 million) was recognised immediately
in the Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account. Hedge
ineffectiveness mainly arises from changes to the forecasted amounts of
cash flows of hedged items and hedging instruments.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting

period is the fair value of the derivative financial instruments in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 &

13.

14.

MF5ERRMIsE

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 13. HERBTER

(HK$’'000) GB¥ T L) 2020 2019

Time deposits held at banks SR1TE HiTF 3K 388,771 595,126

Deposits held by fund managers REKEBEREEREADN 15,360 5,081
for investments pi= e

Imprest accounts for overseas BINVERER  EHEEBRAES 5,148 3,122
promotional projects

Cash, savings and current accounts EfRe  REMIRFO&R 52,660 176,229

461,939 779,558

During the year, the effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 2.3% per annum (2019: 1.8% per annum). These deposits have
maturity periods ranging from 5 to 92 days (2019: ranging from 8 to 92
days).

The carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances were denominated
in the following currencies:

RAFER - RHRTERNE REFE
72 3E (20195 : FHE18E) - ETF
MKAE)FEII R BB A F5H £92H (20194 -
NF8AEN2AH) o

RERRTEFNREEATIERRE

fir -

(HK$'000) (BETIT) 2020 2019
Hong Kong dollars ok 95,300 117,691
Euro BX JT 9,830 19,207
United States dollars E7T 325,227 543,889
Other currencies H g H 31,582 98,771
461,939 779,558
BANK BORROWINGS AND INTEREST ON BANK BORROWINGS 14. RTERERTERFE
HKTDC entered into an unsecured bank loan facility arrangement for AERBEEGEZEEPLPEEES S

HK$720 million to partly finance the construction costs of the HKCEC
Atrium Link Extension project. The bank loan was denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and carries floating interest rate. The bank loan was
repayable in quarterly installments for a period of ten years commencing
from July 2009 and fully repaid in April 2019.

Interest on bank borrowings recognised in the Consolidated Income and
Expenditure Account for the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to
HK$0.02 million (2019: HK$0.78 million).

EE 5 B & - R — H B #7182,0008 7T
EEANRTERRMERE - WRITER
LAV #8 R BB AL 5 F B R K o SRATE AL
200957 AT TEARFEH HEELE
R2019F 4 258 (EE -

HZE2020F3A31HIEFE ' REREKRE X

NIERHIRITERF B BEE28 7T (2019
& BETISEIL) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &3 &

15. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

M5 ERRMIsE

15. FEERFR - FEEtEE REMENRE

(HK$'000) (BT 2020 2019
Accounts payable JE 1+ BR 3K 3,730 4,050
Contract liabilities EHaE 498,689 497,596
Accruals FEETIEH 280,995 410,539
Other payables H A FE 1~ 5/ I8 166,839 154,816
950,253 1,067,001

Details of contract liabilities are as follows: AHEENFBNT :
31 March 31 March 1 April
2020 2019 2018
20204 20194 20184
(HK$'000) (BT T) 3A31H 38318 481H
Exhibitions and missions BEoREe M 461,472 445,828 485,506
Product magazines and online EnEa A tHEETS 35,229 49,844 60,180

marketplace

Other operational income =S N 1,988 1,924 1,419
498,689 497,596 547,105

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received for exhibitions

and missions, product magazines and online marketplace and other

operational income. The increase in contract liabilities in 2020 was

mainly due to the increase in short-term advances received in relation to

exhibitions and missions at the end of the year.

The carrying amounts of accounts payable and other payables, which

approximate their fair values, were denominated in the following

EHNEERREZEESRGIEE ER
HARBLERETFAREMEERANE
HTE UL ERIB - 200F A B B INEE
HRARFHEBRESRES KM E K
B &9 52 B TE UK I8 A P N o

FEAS B R e Eo Al S OB AR EE A A
REBEEE  UTIEERENMN

currencies:
(HK$'000) (BT 2020 2019
Hong Kong dollars & 161,529 151,201
Renminbi AR 4,098 3,510
Euro = 784 394
United States dollars e 529 390
Other currencies H fth 5 ¥k 3,629 3,371
170,569 158,866
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16.

17.

18.

GENERAL FUND 16. ZBEES
2020 2019
HKCEC
Atrium
Link
Extension Others Total Total
EBEE
BEH L
(HK$'000) (BEFIT) FERER Hth B k)
Balance brought forward 7 B 45 85 701,582 638,437 1,340,019 1,361,990
Transfer to Consolidated Income and  EREF A M & - (396,922) (396,922) (81,164)
Expenditure Account
Transfer from/(to) Reserve Fund BEE (D) RFEBEES (56,346) 377,934 321,588 65,517
(Note 17) (MFEE17)
Transfer to Exhibition Contracting ERETREREABRGE - (1,823) (1,823) (6,324)
Services Fund (Note 18) & (fFzE18)
Balance carried forward EETRNEE 645,236 617,626 1,262,862 1,340,019
The General Fund represents the Group's contribution to the HKCEC THREERRAEEARBTEGEREFT O
Atrium Link Extension and other non-current assets. FRERENMEMIERBEEMNZA -
RESERVE FUND 17. REES
(HK$'000) (BETT) 2020 2019
Balance brought forward R 4 5R 1,175,246 1,168,763
Transfer to General Fund (Note 16) EHEATRES (Mi16) (321,588) (65,517)
Transfer from Other Specific Funds (Note 19) HBEOHEMSEE S (MFE19) 212,936 72,000
Balance carried forward HEETEE 1,066,594 1,175,246

(BEREZERRB

1B EVIER — B 75 {5 XX

Section 22(2) of Part VI on Financial Provisions and Reports of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council Ordinance requires disclosure of all

R EZHF2202 )1lmzzfﬁﬁiﬁﬁfﬁ7fﬁk¢f§*

unallocated balances and surpluses available for use during the year. The

Reserve Fund represents all such surpluses.

EXHIBITION CONTRACTING SERVICES FUND

NAFBERAERMNRDELER R B -
f%ﬁﬁﬁ%ltt%%ﬁ%ﬂ%@%&

18. REREBRKES

(HK$'000) (BT 2020 2019
Balance brought forward R 45 5 181,763 175,439
Transfer from/(to) General Fund (Note 16) EEE () EBRES (MzE16)
— Acquisition of operating assets - BELEEE (12,199) (5,662)
— Depreciation of operating assets —REBENTE 13,971 11,951
— Written-down value of operating assets on — L ELEEENMRE 51 35
disposal
1,823 6,324
Balance carried forward RETFE 183,586 181,763

The Exhibition Contracting Services Fund represents the accumulated net
income generated from operating assets provided for support services to
trade fairs and exhibitions organised by the Group. This fund is set aside
for future replacement and purchase of additional operating assets.

REABRBESIEAREEERMTT
%Hlﬁ%%zﬁgIﬁﬁﬁiﬁ#ﬂﬁﬁ%)ﬁﬁ“@ﬁﬁﬁ
ZRFFERS - MECEEREREE MIE
EFEHRINEEEEMM °
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19. OTHER SPECIFIC FUNDS

= A,
AR

AR R MY SE

19. HitEE&E®

2020 2019
Convention
Retirement Exhibition  Investment And
Benefit Capital Stand in Exhibition
Hedging Scheme Assets Systems  Subsidiary Centre
Reserve Reserve Fund Fund Fund Fund Total Total
BiER Exft RBEEL  REWE  8HRE
(HK$'000) (B%FT) UhEE  HERE 2 EEEE  %EEE  DFEE h0ES &g g
Balance brought forward Rl (2366)  (124,886) 102,682 71,807 4,600 524903 613,740 552,691
Transfer from/(to) Consolidated Income ~ E#HE / (F) A MT &
and Expenditure Account
- Interest income —H2HA - - - - - 7,154 7,154 5,758
- (Loss)/gain from investment in -BEhEREEES - - (1,616) (1,130 (407) - (3,153) 153
fived-income and equity securities LA (BE) /s
~ Ineffective portion of cash flow Kbk (2,458) - - - - - (2458) (735)
hedges BN
- Retirement benefit expenses B HEIM - (11,445) - - - - (11,445) (15,776)
excluding cash contributions RIVERI
- Items related to HKCEC operation -BREBEAEERL - - - - - (16,466) (16,466) 172,226
EEZEE
(2,458) (11,445) (1,616) (1,130) (407) (9312) (26,368) 168,996
Other Comprehensive Income Afh2EkE
~ Realisation of derivative financial ~TEERIARH 2,366 - - - - - 2,366 (9.852)
instruments
- Fair value loss on derivative financial ~ —EXFTESBIA (2,289) - - - - - (2,289) (2,605)
instruments at year end MEEEE
- Actuarial loss on defined benefit - RERFIRIGT 2 - (57,457) - - - - (57,457) (23,490)
retirement schemes (Note 6(bii) REEE (F6l)i)
71 (57,457) - - - - (57,380) (35,947)
Transfer to Reserve Fund (Note 17) EREREES (WH17) - - (101,066)  (70,677)  (41,193) - (212,930) (72,000)
Balance carried forward RETEE (4747)  (193,788) - - - 515591 317,056 613,740

The Hedging Reserve represents the effective portion of fair value gains

or losses arising from the cash flow hedges as explained in note 2(w)

and is recycled to the Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account

between one month and twelve months from the end of the reporting

period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19.

20.

(a)

(b)

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &2 & 5 % B /5 & ¥ 2019/20

PP
12 O = |

MF5ERRMIsE

OTHER SPECIFIC FUNDS (Cont’d) 19. Htt$EES ()
The Retirement Benefit Scheme Reserve represents the Group’'s RAREHNFEIREEDEASEEGSALE
total retirement benefit expenses excluding cash contributions and W sz 2k AR & 2 W & 2k A A 4R K12 A
actuarial gain or loss that are charged to the Consolidated Income and > GRe BRI RAEHE W kB8 -
Expenditure Account and Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income.
The Capital Assets Fund exists for the acquisition of the Group's ERAUEEESNRBEARASENYEM
properties and will be transferred to the General Fund upon the ®WHERBABEREREETLRES -
execution of asset purchases.
The Exhibition Stand Systems Fund was set up for the acquisition of REH#UEBEEC D ARBEEBR UARK
unique, custom-designed exhibition stand systems to upgrade the ERFTHREHEMEEMSR  ZEURESR
presentation of the Group’s overseas promotional projects. SERBINERFD R -
The Investment in Subsidiary Fund was set up for the incorporation of REMBARE S IR E A R W&
subsidiary companies. AV
The Convention and Exhibition Centre Fund was set up to deal with the EEREEPLERDAREEBAEEEYE
Group's contribution to the enhancement works of the HKCEC Phase I AERREPLOL_HEFORSIERE
building, as well as further expansion projects. —HERTIRME L °
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 20. mEBEREXRKTE
Major Non-Cash Transactions (@) EEFREXRH
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use RAFERN AEBEEEFERESE XM
assets and lease liabilities of HK$41.31 million and HK$41.31 million EEEMFESEENRABEKA1318 T
respectively. R E¥EA 1318 T ©
Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from Financing Activities: (b) REBMEZTHNEBHE:
Lease Bank

Liabilities Borrowings
(HK$’000) (BT HESE RITER
At 31 March 2019 720193 H31H - 18,000
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 EMEAVBREENFR16FRHATE 47,828 -
At 1 April 2019 (restated) 201964418 (&) 47,828 18,000
Cash outflow from financing activities MEEHRIRE R HE (30,078) (18,000)
New leases MEE 41,306 -
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 1,259 -
Interest elements on lease liabilities DHEAKREEHNEEAEN (1,259) -

classified as operating activities #8210

At 31 March 2020 M2020F3A31H 59,056 -
At 1 April 2018 R2018F4 818 = 90,000
Cash outflow from financing activities BEEE IR &N = (72,000)
At 31 March 2019 M2019F3A31H — 18,000
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20.
()

21.

(a)

(b)

P
02 O = |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)
Total Cash Outflow for Leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash flows

M5 ERRMIsE

20.
(o)

FEeRERBRUEE (&)
HERSTRHARE
RenEXTEANHERSRHARD

is as follows: T :

(HK$'000) (BETT) 2020

Within operating activities M &5 B 7,866

Within financing activities REEEE 30,078
37,944

COMMITMENTS 21. &iE

Capital Commitments (a) BEXREIE

(HK$’'000) (BETT) 2020 2019

Contracted but not provided for EENEREE

Property, plant and equipment M RIE NN 10,331 7,717

Operating Lease Commitments (b) REHEGHEE

Future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease in respect of office premises, commercial premises and
staff quarters at 31 March 2019 were payable as follows:

MR2019F3A318  RIBEBEHEZRE - &
MEEEEMNTAMEMNCEAE &
RN REENESLBOT

(HK$'000) (B TIT) 2019
Within one year —F RN 29,873
More than one year but less than five years ZR—FELRAF 20,400

50,273

During the year ended 31 March 2019, operating lease expenses for
leased premises amounted to HK$2.11 million was included in “Other
promotional activities” in the Consolidated Income and Expenditure
Account.

Future aggregate minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating lease in respect of properties at 31 March were as follows:

REZE2019F3A31BILFENRN © BREELS
AR EMEEES I HEEHE
EHAEBE21ME T -

M3A318  RIFEEMEN T A HHAL
LHEWR - RANRERKHSBEBNT

(HK$'000) (BE®TIT) 2020 2019
Within one year —FUA 7,267 5,088
More than one year but less than five years %R —FBDRAF 3,355 3,534

10,622 8,622
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21. COMMITMENTS (Cont’d) 21. A&IE (&)

(c) Lease Contracts not yet Commenced () HMAMBHEESH
The Group has various lease contracts that have not yet commenced as NEE A ZIEMR202053 A31 8 i AR FE 6
at 31 March 2020. The future lease payments for these non-cancellable HEAK ZETAHBEHRESNBHERR
lease contracts are HK$1.20 million due within one year and HK$1.20 HEMZR—FRIBEE-EFEAFNA
million due in the second to fifth years, inclusive. FE DRI R A E1208 T RABE1208 T -

22. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 22. BEHATHE
As HKTDC was incorporated under the Hong Kong Trade Development ARREBE(GEBESERBKONKYL - +
Council Ordinance and seven Council members including the Council FRESKE PREEEFSEFE HITK
Chairman are appointed by the Chief Executive, the HKSAR Government REZE Bt BERFERA BB
has significant influence in making financial and operating policies and BRTBARAELE UARAEAAEHE
is regarded as the Group's related party. In addition to the subvention WEBA LT BRRNEEMBmMEREMIBY
payable to HKTDC disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial P 4% B2 O IR 388 SR A0 - K & | B B BT
statements, the Group entered into related party transactions during BECE(ATHBEIBFAECRE] RA
the year with the HKSAR Government related entities (“government FEANBBATRIBEESIRER -
related entities”) in exhibitions, missions and other operational activities TEERNESHEREARENEMEEE
for trade promotion purposes. The Council consider those entities are H-REERA RAEEELSEZED
independent third parties as far as the Group’s business transactions with XETHEBRIME  ZZLXHARBE
them are concerned. In establishing its pricing strategies and approval VE=ZF o AEERNERFEECEEY
process for transactions with the government related entities, the Group ROGEBEBREMEFBERILES P
does not differentiate whether the counter-party is a government related HIREBBNBEELE AEERE &
entities. The Group is of the opinion that it has provided, in the best of HARAA ERGEVBmMEAREZEH
its knowledge, adequate and appropriate disclosure of significant related BALTRSGERT R REENHKE -

party transactions in the consolidated financial statements.

23. OTHER MATTERS 23. H{h=1E
The Group provides financial assistance to The Hong Kong Shippers’ REBERETBRIETERNEAZES
Council and subsidises the activities of the HongKong Japan Business WEBBERESIEZE GG - XA
Co-operation Committee. Expenditure for these purposes during the FEA BEEFERIREREZUHLESH
year, which has been dealt with in the Consolidated Income and R

Expenditure Account, was as follows:

(HK$'000) (BETIT) 2020 2019
The Hong Kong Shippers’ Council EENEANLZES 6,743 6,535
HongKong Japan Business BHRBEERZES - 372

Co-operation Committee
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Auditor and Principal Bankers #ZZ16fi K £ ER1T

AUDITOR % SRR

Ernst & Young 22K & 5HRD F I BT
PRINCIPAL BANKERS FERT

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited FRERTT (BB BRAA
Citibank, N.A. TEHEERTT

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited BITRTT (BB) AR A A
MUFG Bank, Ltd. MUFG Bank, Ltd.

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited BB LBEZRITAERAA
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